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NOTICE 

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial Statements) of the 

Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia (DIN: 00026455), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To re-appoint Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia (DIN: 00032088) as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and in this 

regard, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such other statutory approvals as may be necessary, approval of the Members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia (DIN: 00032088) as Chairman and Managing 
Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years, on expiry of his present term of office, i.e with effect from April 1, 2022, on 
the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, with 
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment and/or remuneration 
as it may deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified 
under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year of the Company during                  
Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia’s term of office as Chairman and Managing Director, he shall be entitled to remuneration, perquisites and 
other benefits as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts and to take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”
 By Order of the Board of Directors

For Prime Urban Development India Limited

            Darshi Shah
Place: Mumbai    Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Date: August 13, 2021       Membership No.:A30508

Registered Office:      
Door No. 83, 3rd Floor, Plot No.4,  
Avinashi Main Road, Near Petrol Bunk, 
Asher Nagar, Tirupur 641 603

NOTICE is hereby given that the 84th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of PRIME URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
INDIA LIMITED will be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 11.00 a.m. through Video conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual 
Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses:
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NOTICE 
1. In view of the continuing COVID -19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its Circular No.20/2020 dated 

5th May, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021 (collectively referred to as 'MCA Circulars') and SEBI Circular 
No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 read with SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th 
January, 2021 ("SEBI Circulars") permitted the holding of an Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the 
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), MCA Circulars and SEBI 
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is proposed to be held through VC/ OAVM.

2. In terms of the MCA Circulars since this General Meeting is held through VC/OAVM the physical attendance of Members is 
dispensed with and no proxies would be accepted by the Company.

3. Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM Facility shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act.

4. In compliance with the aforesaid Circulars and SEBI Circulars dated May 12, 2020, Notice of 84th AGM along with the Annual 
Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company or CDSL. Members may note that the notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the Company’s 
website www.ptlonline.com, website of Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and is also being sent to all 
Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes. Members 
are requested to register/update their e-mail address with the Depository Participant (in case of shares held in dematerialised 
form) or with SKDC Consultants Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent (“RTA”) of the Company (in case of shares held in 
physical form). 

5. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act relating to special business as set out in Item no. 3 is furnished 
as part of this notice. A brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at this AGM, nature of their expertise in 
specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/ chairmanships of Board 
Committees, shareholding and relationship between directors inter se as stipulated under Regulation 36 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other requisite information 
as per Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, are provided in Annexure 1.

6. Relevant Documents in respect of items referred to in the accompanying Notice are available on website of the Company for 
inspection by the Members.

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, September 24, 2021 to 
Thursday, September 30, 2021 (both days inclusive).

8. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement 
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be 
available for 1,000 Members on a ‘first come first served’ basis. The large Shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more), 
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, auditors etc. can attend the AGM without any 
restriction on account of ‘first come first served’ basis.

9. Corporate Members are required to send a duly certified true copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representative(s) to attend through VC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting on their behalf at 
the AGM.

10. Members are requested to send all communications relating to shares to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the 
Company at the following address:

 S.K.D.C. Consultants Limited
 “Surya”, 35, Mayflower Avenue
 Behind Senthil Nagar
 Sowripalayam Road
 Coimbatore – 641028
 Tel No. +91 422 4958995/2539835-836
 Fax No. +91 422 2539837
 Email: info@skdc-consultants.com
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11. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating 
voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote 
e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

12. Any person, who becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of this Notice and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 
Thursday, 23 September, 2021 may obtain the User ID and password for Remote E-voting by sending a request at 
companysecretary@ptlonline.com. However, if a Member is already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting, then he/she can 
use his/her existing User Id and Password for casting the vote. Only a Member who is entitled to vote shall exercise his/her/its 
vote through e-voting and any recipient of this Notice who has no voting rights as on the cut-off date should treat the same as 
intimation only. 

13. Members joining the meeting through VC who have not already cast their vote by means of remote e-voting, shall be able to 
exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the 
AGM may also join the AGM through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

14. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder, who is higher in the order of names, will be entitled to vote 
at the Meeting.

15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under Section 189 of 
Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection at the AGM.

16. In accordance with the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, effective from April 1, 2019, transfers of securities of the Company shall not be 
processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity 
shares in physical form are urged to have their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them and participate 
in corporate actions.

17. Members desirous of obtaining any information as regards Accounts are requested to write to the Company at 
companysecretary@ptlonline.com at least one week before the AGM so that the information required will be made available at 
the AGM. The same will be replied by/ on behalf of the Company suitably.

18. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. S. Ramanathan, Practicing Chartered Accountant (Membership No. FCA 019532) as 
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

19. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the AGM, 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by 
him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

20. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be displayed at the Registered Office of the Company and placed 
on the Company’s website www.ptlonline.com and on website of CDSL e-Voting www.evotingindia.com within two days of the 
passing of the Resolutions at the AGM of the Company and will also be communicated to the BSE Ltd., where the shares of 
the Company are listed.

21. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING
The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under: 

(i) The voting period begins on, Monday, September 27, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on, Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 
5.00 p.m. During this period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date of, September 23, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This 
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable 
e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of 
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again 
with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating 
in e-voting process. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 

Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email 
Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

 Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1)    Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2)    After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. Additionally, there are also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 

1)    If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2)    If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
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 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

 (v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form.

 1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
 2. Click on Shareholders/Members.
 3. Now Enter your User ID 
  a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
  c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

OR
 Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at https://www.cdslindia.com from 

Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on 
e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at  
022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 
  Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

Demat mode with NSDL 
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30   

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 
 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 

1)    If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2)    If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3)   Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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 4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of 
any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 6. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

 (vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 (vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

 (ix) Click on the EVSN for Prime Urban Development India Limited.

 (x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. 
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO 
implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

 (xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

 (xii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 
you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your 
vote.

 (xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

 (xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

 (xvi) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from 
respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.

 PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN 
THIS NOTICE:  

1.  For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders). 
Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in 
the PAN field. 
In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the 
number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is 
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

Dividend Bank 
Details OR Date 
of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the Company records in order to login. 
If both the details are not recorded with the depository or the Company please enter the 
member id/folio no. in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 
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2.  For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + 
CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. 
Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote 
e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will 
be displayed.

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot 
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker 
by sending their request in advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, 
email id, mobile number at companysecretary@ptlonline.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM 
but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably 
by email. 

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM/EGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful login 
as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the 
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system available during the AGM.

4. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have 
not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

5. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible 
to vote at the AGM.

NOTE FOR NON – INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS
 • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
 • A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
 • After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
 • The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
 • Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 

together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer 
and to the Company at the email address viz; companysecretary@ptlonline.com, if they have voted from individual tab 
& not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 
which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058543 or 022-23058542.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower 
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Prime Urban Development India Limited

            Darshi Shah
Place: Mumbai    Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Date: August 13, 2021       Membership No.:A30508

Registered Office:      
Door No. 83, 3rd Floor, Plot No.4,  
Avinashi Main Road, Near Petrol Bunk, 
Asher Nagar, Tirupur 641 603
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”):
Item No. 3
The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), at its Meeting held on August 13, 2021 has, subject to approval of Members, 
re-appointed Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia (DIN: 00032088) as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 
(three) years from the expiry of his present term, i.e. with effect from April 1, 2022, on the terms and conditions including remuneration 
as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and approved by the Board.

Since the age of Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia is above 70 years, it is proposed to seek Members approval by passing Special 
Resolution for the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia as Chairman and Managing Director 
of the Company, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act.

Keeping in view that Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia has rich and varied experience in Realty business, it would be in the interest of the 
Company to re-appoint Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Broad particulars of the terms of re-appointment of, and remuneration payable to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia are as under:

I. Salary: Rs. 1,00,000/- per month

II. Perquisites: Perquisites shall be allowed in addition to salary and shall be restricted to an amount equal to the annual salary.

The details of perquisites are mentioned below:

A. House Rent Allowance:

(i) The expenditure by the Company on hiring furnished accommodation will be subject to a ceiling of 60% of the salary, over and 
above 10% payable by Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia.

(ii) If the Company does not provide accommodation to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia, he shall be entitled to House Rent Allowance 
equivalent to 50% of his salary.

(iii) If accommodation in the Company owned house is provided to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia, a deduction of 10% shall be made 
from his salary.

Explanation: The expenditure incurred by the Company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be valued as per Income tax 
Rules 1962. This shall however, be subject to a ceiling of 10% of the salary of Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia.

B.  Discretionary Allowance:

(i) Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of expenses incurred for self and family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary in a 
year or three month’s salary over a period of three years.

(ii) Leave Travel Concession: Leave Travel Concession for self and family once in a year incurred in accordance with the rules of 
the Company.

(iii) Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. No Admission and Life Membership fees will be paid.

(iv) Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance of an amount, the premium which shall not exceed Rs. 10,000 per 
annum.

C. Provident Fund
Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites to the 
extent these, either singly or put together, are not taxable under the Income tax Act, 1961.

D. Car
Provision of car for use on Company’s business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. Personal long 
distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by the Company.

E. Others
(i) Earned Leave: On full pay and allowances as per the rules of the Company but not exceeding one month’s leave for every eleven 
months of service. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites.
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III. Benefits and Amenities:

A. Gratuity
Gratuity payable shall not exceed half month’s salary for each completed year of service.

IV. General:

(i) The Chairman and Managing Director will perform his duties as such with regard to all work of the Company and will manage and 
attend to such business and carry out the orders and directions given by the Board from time to time in all respects and conform to 
and comply with all such directions and regulations as may be from time to time be given and made by the Board.

(ii) The Chairman and Managing Director shall act in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and shall abide by 
the provisions contained in Section 166 of the Act with regard to duties of directors.

(iii) The Chairman and Managing Director shall adhere to the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(iv) The office of Chairman and Managing Director may be terminated by the Company or by him by giving the other 3 (three) months 
notice in writing.

Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-1 of Schedule V to the Act as also conditions set out under 
Section 196(3) of the Act for being eligible for his re-appointment. He is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of 
Section 164 of the Act.

I. General Information   
1 Nature of Industry : Realty  
2 Date or expected date of 

commencement of commercial 
production 

: 16/05/1937 

   (Rs. In Lakhs) 
3 Financial performance  : 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Gross Sales : 15,185.26 5,342.02 755.32 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax : (252.04) (762.27) (146.01) 
Net Profit/(Loss) : (278.46) (759.50) (148.31) 
Export Performance : 12,933.47 4,938.02 Nil 
Net Foreign Exchange Earning : 12,548.48 4,787.64 Nil  

4 Foreign investments or collaborators, 
if any 

: The Company has, on 22.07.2020 acquired a wholly owned 
subsidiary in the USA namely Prime Urban North America INC. 

II. Information about the Appointee   

1. Background Details : Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia is B.Com. He is a mentor of the Prime 
group with vast experience. 

2. Past Remuneration and other benefit : Remuneration paid during FY 2020-21 was Rs. 13.34 lakhs. 
3. Recognition or awards : - 
4. Job profile and his suitability : Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia devotes his full time and attention to the 

business of the Company and is responsible for the general conduct 
and management of the affairs of the Company, subject to the 
superintendence, control and supervision of the Board. 

Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia has rich and varied experience in the line 
of the business of the Company which is compatible with the 
Organizational requirements and the Company would definitely 
benefit under his leadership and valuable guidance. 

5. Remuneration proposed : As given above in the explanatory statement. 

6. Comparative remuneration profile 
with respect to industry, size of the 
Company, profile of the position and 

: The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia, 
Chairman and Managing Director is purely based on merit. 
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Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia and Mr. Anuj Patodia, 
being related to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia may be deemed to be interested in the said Resolution.

The other relatives of Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia may be deemed to be interested in the said resolution of the Notice, to the extent of their 
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company/their relatives are, in anyway concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of Members. 

6. Comparative remuneration profile 
with respect to industry, size of the 
Company, profile of the position and 
person (in case expatriates the 
relevant details would be w.r.t. the 
country of his origin) 

: The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia, Chairman 
and Managing Director is purely based on merit. 

Further, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board, 
perused the remuneration of managerial person in other companies comparable 
with the size of the Company, industry benchmarks in general, profile and 
responsibilities of Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia before recommending the 
remuneration as proposed hereinabove. 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any 

: Besides the remuneration proposed, Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia also holds 
12,98,020  equity shares of the Company.  

Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia, Director and Mr. Anuj Patodia, Director being 
relatives may be deemed to be interested in the Resolution relating to the 
remuneration of Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia. 

III. Other Information   
1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits : Share of loss is mainly due to recognition of Share of Loss of Firms in which the 

Company is a Partner and due to fixed cost incurred by the Company. 
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken 

for Improvement 
: Taken steps and reduced the fixed admin cost and the cost of Interest also 

reduced. 
3. Expected increase productivity and 

profits 

measurable terms 

: There is no manufacturing activity carried out in the Company. A moderate 
increase in Profit levels are expected. 

IV. Disclosures   
 The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Directors Report under the heading “Corporate Governance” if 

any, attached to the financial statement 
1. all elements of remuneration 

package such as salary, benefits, 
bonuses, stock options, pension, 
etc., of all the directors; 

: The Company is exempted from reporting Corporate Governance, hence, the 
same shall not be disclosed. 

 
Nil 

 
 
Nil 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

2. Details of fixed component. and 
performance linked incentives along 
with the performance criteria 

:         

3. Service contracts, notice period, 
severance fees; and 

: 

4. Stock option details, if any, and 
whether the same has been issued at 
a discount as well as the period over 
which accrued and over which 
exercisable.  

: 
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“Annexure I”
Information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 
1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings in respect of individuals proposed to be appointed / re-appointed as Directors:

Registered Office:       By Order of the Board of Directors
Door No. 83, 3rd Floor, Plot No.4,  For Prime Urban Development India Limited
Avinashi Main Road, Near Petrol Bunk, 
Asher Nagar, Tirupur 641 603
            Darshi Shah 
Place: Mumbai    Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Date: August 13, 2021       Membership No.:A30508

Name of the Director Manoj Kumar Patodia Purusottamdas Patodia 
Director Identification Number 00026455 00032088 
Age  57 years 83 years 
Date of first appointment on the Board 19/10/1989 14/05/1988 
Qualifications B.Com B. Com 
Experience and Expertise in Specific 
Functional Area 

Vast experience in and Realty Segment 

 

Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia is a mentor of the 
Prime group with vast experience in Realty 
business 

Terms of Appointment/re-appointment Re-appointment in terms of Section 152(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 

Re-appointment as Chairman and Managing 
Director for a further term of 3 years w.e.f. April 1, 
2022 in terms of section 196, 197 and 203 read 
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013  

Details of remuneration sought to be 
paid 

NIL 
The designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Patodia Changed from executive director 
to Non-executive/non-independent director 
w.e.f. June 23, 2021 with no remuneration 
to be paid.  

As per the terms of re-appointment as mentioned 
in item no. 3 and explanatory statement 
hereinabove this notice. 

Details of remuneration last drawn Rs. 1.34 Lakhs Rs. 13.34 Lakhs 
Directorship held in other companies 
(As on March 31, 2021) 

1. Pat Credit Limited 
2. Manoj Yarn Processors Limited 
3. ATL Textile Processors Limited 
4. The Cotton Textiles Export Promotion 

Council  

1. Anjana Syntex Company Limited 
2. Pat Credit Limited 
 

Chairmanships/Memberships of the 
Committees of the Board of Directors 
of other  companies (As on March 31, 
2021) 

Nil Nil 

Shareholding in the Company (As on 
March 31, 2021) 

10,46,918 equity shares 12,98,020 equity shares 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company 

Related to Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia and 
Mr. Anuj Patodia. 

Father of Mr. Anuj Patodia and Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Patodia 

number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year 

Attended 4 out 4 meetings Attended 4 out 4 meetings 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 Dear Members,

 Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 84th Annual Report on the business and operations of Prime 
Urban Development India Limited [“Company”] together with the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company, for the Year ended March 31, 2021.

 1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 The summarized financial performance (Standalone and Consolidated) of your Company for 2020-21 and 

2019-20 is given below:

 During the Financial year 2020-21, your Company has clocked revenues of Rs. 755.32 Lakhs in the Realty 
segment. Your Company has sold 31,514 sq. ft. of developed land during the period under review. 

 2. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) read 
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, applicable Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (hereinafter referred to as the “SEBI Listing Regulations”), the 
audited consolidated financial statements are provided in this Annual Report.

3. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
As at March 31, 2021, your Company had following 5 (Five) Subsidiary Companies:

 1.  ATL Textile Processors Limited

 2. Manoj Yarn Processors Limited

 3. New Line Buildtech Private Limited 

 4. Srivarsha Realtors Private Limited

 5. Prime Urban North America INC.

  Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 
Revenue from operations 755.32 5,342.02 2,059.29 5,236.81 
Other Income 271.25 107.83 272.11 109.34 
Total Income 1,026.57 5,449.85 2,331.41 5,346.15 
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
exceptional items and amortization (EBITDA) 

42.70 (499.82) (38.89) (285.44) 

Less : Finance Costs 159.29 224.96 176.69 324.46 
Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 29.42 37.49 32.60 40.62 
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (146.01) (762.27) (170.30) (650.52) 
Exceptional Items -- -- -- -- 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (146.01) (762.27) (170.30) (650.52) 
Less: Tax Expense (2.30) 2.77 (1.17) 2.29 
Profit/(Loss) After Tax (148.31) (759.50) (171.48) (648.23) 
Other comprehensive Income/(expenses) 1.09 27.52 0.87 27.52 
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (147.22) (731.98) (170.61) (620.71) 
Surplus from previous year brought forward (1,886.59) (1,154.61) (2,306.51) (1,671.21) 
Less: Dividend and Dividend tax paid 
during the year 

-- -- -- -- 

Un-realised gain in contra-group transfers  -- -- (5.88) (14.59) 
Transfer to General Reserve  -- -- -- -- 
Minority Interest -- -- 0.07 -- 
Amount available for appropriation (2,033.81) (1,886.59) (2,482.93) (2,306.51) 
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Your company had acquired a company in the United States of America in the name Prime Urban North America 
INC. as its wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f. July 22, 2020 with initial investment of USD 9,900 for carrying out 
project management and consultancy services.

Also, two subsidiary companies viz. Pee Dee Yarn Processors Limited and Patodia Developers Private Limited, 
being inoperative, have applied for striking of names from the register of companies on March 30, 2021.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries, Associate Companies and 
Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 is attached to this Report as “Annexure I”. The Audited Financial Statements of 
each of the Subsidiary Companies have been placed on the website of the Company- www.ptlonline.com under 
the Investors Section.

4. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company, do not recommend any Dividend for the year under review due to 
losses.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2021 stood at Rs. 532.87 Lakhs. During the 
year under review, the Company has not issued shares or convertible securities or shares with differential voting 
rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity or warrants, As on March 31, 2021, none of the Directors 
of the Company hold instruments convertible into Equity Shares of the Company.

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

In view of losses incurred during the financial year 2020-21, the Board of Directors of your Company has decided 
not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year under review.

7. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act, read 
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and hence there are no unpaid/unclaimed deposits 
nor there is any default in repayment thereof. 

8. BOARD MEETINGS
Composition and Attendance:
As on March 31, 2021, the composition and attendance of the Board of Directors have been as under:

*the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director w.e.f. 
June 23, 2021
**the designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director w.e.f. 
September 3, 2020
**Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2021

The Board of Directors of your Company met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2020-21 on June 29, 2020, 
September 3, 2020, November 9, 2020 and January 29, 2021.

Name of the Director Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
held 

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended by 
the Director 

Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia Executive Chairman/Promoter   4 4 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia* Executive Vice-Chairman/Promoter   4 4 
Mr. Anuj Patodia** Non-executive/Non-independent 

Director/ Promoter 
4 4 

Mr. N. K. Bafna Non-Executive Director/ Independent 4 4 
Mr. Banwarilal Singhal*** Non-Executive Director/ Independent 4 3 
Mrs. Ryna Zaiwalla Karani Non-Executive Director/Independent 4 4 
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9. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors have the following Committees:  

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition and Attendance:
As on March 31, 2021, the composition and attendance of the Audit Committee has been as under:

*Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2021
**the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director 
w.e.f. June 23, 2021
***Mrs. Ryna Zaiwalla Karani appointed as member of Audit Committee w.e.f. August 2, 2021

During the financial year 2020-21, four meetings of Audit Committee were held on June 29, 2020, September 3, 
2020, November 9, 2020 and January 29, 2021.

II. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Composition and Attendance at Meeting
As on March 31, 2021, the composition and attendance of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been as 
under:

*Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2021
**the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director 
w.e.f. June 23, 2021

During the financial year 2020-21, four meetings of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee were held on June 29, 
2020, September 3, 2020, November 9, 2020 and January 29, 2021.

III. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Composition and Attendance:
As on March 31, 2021, the composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been as under:

*Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2021
**the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director 
w.e.f. June 23, 2021 and appointed as member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.e.f. August 2, 2021

Name of the Members Chairman/ 
Member 

Category No. of 
Meeting(s) 

held 

No. Of 
Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Banwarilal Singhal* Chairman Non-Executive Director/Independent  4 3 
Mr. N. K. Bafna Member Non-Executive Director/Independent  4 4 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia** Member Executive Vice-Chairman/Promoter  4 4 
Mrs. Ryna Zaiwalla Karani*** Member Non-Executive Director/ Independent -- -- 

Name of the Members Designation Category No. of 
Meeting(s) Held 

No. of 
Meeting(s) 
Attended 

Mr. N. K. Bafna Chairman Non-Executive 
Director/Independent 

4 4 

Mr. Banwarilal Singhal* Member Non-Executive 
Director/Independent 

4 3 

Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia
 

Member Executive 
Chairman/Promoter 

4 4 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia**
 

Member Executive Vice-
Chairman/Promoter 

4 4 

Name of the Members  Chairman/
Member

 Category No. of Meeting(s)
Held  

No. of Meeting(s) 
Attended  

Mr. Banwarilal Singhal*  Chairman Non-Executive 
Director/Independent 

0 0 

Mr. N. K. Bafna Member Non-Executive 
Director/Independent 

0 0 

Mrs. Ryna Karani Member Non-Executive 
Director/Independent 

0 0 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia**
 

Member Executive Vice-Chairman/ 
Promoter 

-- -- 
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IV. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE
Composition and Attendance at Meeting
As on March 31, 2021, the composition of CSR Committee has been as under:

*Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2021
** Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia appointed as chairman of CSR Committee w.e.f. August 2, 2021
***the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director 
w.e.f. June 23, 2021
****the designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director w.e.f. 
September 3, 2020

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE
Composition and Attendance at Meeting
As on March 31, 2021, the composition of Finance Committee has been as under:

*the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director w.e.f. 
June 23, 2021
**the designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director w.e.f. 
September 3, 2020

During the financial year 2020-21, no meeting of Finance Committee was held.

10. IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC
The outbreak of COVID – 19 pandemic and enforced lockdowns along with necessary restrictions on various 
activities had posed challenges to the businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries. 

The Company's operations came to a slower phase for a long period. Due to the low volume of business from 
March end it has affected the collection and liquidity, revenue and profitability substantially and the Company 
faced a financial hit during the fourth quarter of 2020-21.

Covid-19 Pandemic started at the end of the financial year 2019-20 has shocked the entire world which has 
slowed down the business and has impacted the market in which real estate sector is not exempted. It will take 
some more time for recovery to bounce back which is difficult to predict at the given situation.

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GRANTED, GUARANTEE PROVIDED AND INVESTMENTS MADE 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Details of loans granted, guarantees provided and investments made by the Company under the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Act, are provided in Note No. 4(a) and 4(g) under Notes to the financial statements of 
standalone financial statements.

12. PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, EXPENDITURE ON 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Considering the nature of activities in which the Company operates, energy consumption is in accordance to the 
normal business practices and does not require any specific installations. In its regular course of business, the 
Company is always vigilant to conserve the resources and continuously implements measures required to save 
energy.

Name of the Members Chairman/
Member

 Category No. of Meeting(s)
Held

 

No. of Meeting(s)
Attended

 Mr. Banwarilal Singhal* Chairman Non-Executive 
Director/Independent 

0 0 

Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia** Member Executive 0 0 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia***

 
Member Executive Vice-

Chairman/Promoter 
0 0 

Mr. Anuj Patodia**** Member Executive /Promoter 0 0 

Name of the Members  Chairman/
Member 

Category No. of Meeting(s)
Held

 

No. of Meeting(s) 
Attended

 Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia Chairman Executive 0 0 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia*

 
Member Executive Vice-

Chairman/Promoter 
0 0 

Mr. Anuj Patodia** Member Executive /Promoter 0 0 
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The business activities of the Company are not specific to any technology requirements. Hence disclosures 
pertaining to conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to your Company during the 
year under review.

The net Foreign Exchange earnings during the year under review is Nil ( previous year’s Rs. 4,743.82 lakhs).

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All contract/ arrangements/ transactions entered into/ by the Company during the financial year under review with 
related parties were on an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the provisions of the Act read with the Rules 
issued thereunder. There were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company with 
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, which may have a potential 
conflict with interest of the Company at large. 

There are no material related party transactions during the year under review. Accordingly, no transactions are 
being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a Policy on materiality of related party transactions and 
dealing with related party transactions which is in line with the SEBI LODR as amended from time to time. The 
Policy has been uploaded on the Company’s website at https://ptlonline.com/policies/ 

The details of the related party transactions as per IND AS-24 are set out in Note No. 21.07 to the Standalone 
Financial Statements forming part of this report.

14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Since the paid up capital of the company is less than Rs.10 Crores and the net worth of the Company is less than 
Rs.25 Crores, as on the last day of the preceding financial year i.e. March 31, 2020, the provisions of Regulations 
17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,27, and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E 
of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company for FY 2020-21, hence corporate governance report has 
not been enclosed to directors report. 

15. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Manoj 
Kumar Patodia, Director retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible offers 
himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of the Members of 
the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Brief profile of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia has been 
given in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting. None of the Directors are related inter-se to each 
other save and except Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia, Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia, and Mr. Anuj Patodia. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its Meeting held on August 13, 2021, has subject to the approval of 
Members, re-appointed Mr. Purusottamdas Patodia (DIN: 00032088) as Chairman and Managing Director for a 
period of 3 (three) years from the expiry of his present term, i.e. with effect from April 1, 2022, on the terms and 
conditions including remuneration as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
and approved by the Board.

Further, Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. August 2, 2021. Also, the 
designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia and Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive directors to 
non-executive/non-independent directors w.e.f. September 3, 2020 and June 23, 2021, respectively.

During the year under review, the Company has received individual declaration from the Independent Director(s) 
of the Company stating that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act. 

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors 
prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act. The Independent Directors have further confirmed that they are not aware 
of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their 
ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence and 
that he/she is independent of the management. 

The Company has received individual affirmation from all the Directors and Senior Management personnel of the 
Company stating that they have fully complied with provisions of the Code of Conduct for Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2021.
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16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirements of sub section (3)(c) and sub section (5) of Section 134 of the Act, with respect to 
Directors Responsibility Statement it is hereby confirmed that:

 (a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended  March 31, 2021, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any;

 (b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of your Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit and loss of the Company for 
that period;

 (c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 (d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 on a 
going concern basis;

 (e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

 (f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws were in place and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

17. AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

M/s. L. U. Krishnan & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 001527S) were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of five years commencing from the conclusion of 80th Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of 85th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Auditors Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark during the year under review. No instances of fraud have been reported by the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Act.

18. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

In terms of provisions of Section 204 of the Act, the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 
2020-21 was conducted by P M Vaishnavi, Practising Company Secretary (ICSI Membership No. 31824). 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed to this Report as     
“Annexure II”.

19. DISCLOSURE REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain the Cost Records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

20. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)(n) of the Act, the Company has in place a structured risk 
management policy. Your Company believes that managing risks helps in maximising returns. The Risk 
management process is designed to safeguard the organisation from various risks through adequate and timely 
actions. It is designed to anticipate, evaluate and mitigate risks in order to minimize its impact on the business.

21. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, 
as part of vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors and employees to report to the 
management, concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct 
or policy/ies of the Company, as adopted/framed from time to time. The details of said vigil mechanism are given 
in Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report. The Whistle Blower Policy is available 
website of the Company at https://ptlonline.com/policies/



PRIME URBAN DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED

20

22. NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. The Policy broadly lays down the guiding 
principles, philosophy and the basis for payment of remuneration to Executive and Non-executive Directors (by 
way of sitting fees and commission), Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. The 
policy also provides the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of Director 
and criteria for appointment of Key Managerial Personnel / Senior Management and performance evaluation 
which are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors while making 
selection of the candidates. The above policy has been posted on the website of the Company at 
https://ptlonline.com/policies/

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act. The Board of Directors of the Company has, based on the 
recommendations made by the CSR Committee formulated and approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
for the Company. The same is available on the website of the Company at https://ptlonline.com/policies/

The disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is made in 
prescribed form which is annexed to this Report as “Annexure III”.

24. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 197(12) of 
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 is provided under “Annexure IV”, which is annexed to this Report.

None of the employees of the Company were in receipt of monthly or yearly remuneration in excess of the limits 
specified under the Act and Rule 5(2) & Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

A statement comprising the names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn is not being sent along 
with this annual report to the Members of the Company in line with the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. 
Members who are interested in obtaining these particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered 
Office of the Company. The aforesaid Annexure is also available for inspection by Members at the Registered 
Office of the Company, 21 days before and up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting during the 
business hours on working days.

25. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has put in place adequate policies and procedures to ensure that the system of internal financial 
control is commensurate with the size and nature of the Company’s business. The Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests 
improvements to strengthen the same. 

A regular audit and review processes ensure that the controls are reinforced on an ongoing basis. Such controls 
have been assessed during the year taking into consideration the essential components of internal financial 
controls. Based on the assessment carried out by the Company, the internal financial controls were adequate and 
effective and no reportable material weakness or significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 
financial controls were observed, during the year ended March 31, 2021.

26. UNCLAIMED AND UNPAID DIVIDENDS

As on March 31, 2021, amounts of Rs. 3,90,445/- and Rs. 3,94,991/- are lying in the unpaid equity dividend 
account of the Company in respect of the dividend for the Financial Year 2015-16 and 2016-17 respectively. 
Members who have not yet received/claimed their dividend entitlements are requested to contact the Company 
or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

27. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY 

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date 
of this Report.
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28. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 134(3)(p), 149(8), Schedule IV of the Act and in accordance with the policy 
for Performance Evaluation of the Individual directors, Board and its Committees, which includes criteria for 
performance evaluation, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration the various 
aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and its Committees, effectiveness of Board / 
Committee processes, information provided to the Board, etc. On the basis of the said questionnaire, the 
Directors have carried out the annual performance evaluation of the Board, Independent Directors, Executive 
Directors, Committees and the Chairman of the Board.  The Board expressed their satisfaction with the 
evaluation process. A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was also held during the year for the 
evaluation of the performance of non-independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and that of the 
Chairman.

29. DISCLOSURE PERTAINING TO THE SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provision relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the 
year under review, no cases were received/filed pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

30. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act, an extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is hosted on the 
Company’s website viz. www.ptlonline.com.

31. OTHER DISCLOSURES

 1) The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

 2) There are no significant/material orders passed by the regulators/courts/tribunals/Statutory and 
quasi-judicial body during the year under review which would impact the going concern status of 
your Company and its future operations.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors would like to thank and place on record their appreciation for the support and co-operation 
provided to your Company by its Shareholders, Regulatory Authorities. 

Your Directors would also like to place on record their appreciation for the efforts put in by Employees of the 
Company during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board 

Place : Mumbai                         Purusottamdas Patodia 
Date : 13/08/2021                                     Chairman and Managing Director 
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                For and on behalf of the Board 
      Purusottamdas Patodia  
Place  : Mumbai   Chairman & Managing Director
Date   : 13.08.2021  (DIN 00032088) 
  

                        
PART "B" : Associates Companies and Joint Ventures

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures
PART "A" : Subsidiaries

FORM AOC-1

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

*Prime Urban North America became wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f. July 22, 2020
Pee Dee yarn Processors Limited and Patodia Developers Private Limited ceased to be subsidiaries w.e.f. March 30, 2021

 (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

< in Lakhs

< in Lakhs

Annexure I

Sl. No ATL Textile 
Processors 

Limited

Manoj Yarn 
Processors 

Limited

Srivarsha 
Realtors Private 

Limited

New Line 
Buildtech Private 

Limited

Prime Urban North 
America INC.*

1
Reporting Period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the holding 
company's reporting period

31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021

2

Reporting currency and exchange rate 
as on the last date of the relevent 
financial year in case of foreign 
subsidiaries

NA NA NA NA
USD converted into 
INR. Exchange rate 

31.3.2021 Rs. 73.105

3 Share Capital 103.74                 5.09                         1.00                      580.29                 7.31
4 Reserves and Surplus 418.72                 -10.92                     12.59                    3,078.87              24.36
5 Total Assets 522.46                 -5.83                       13.59                    3,659.16              31.67                            
6 Total Liabilities 0.16                      6.44                         67.11                    14.15                    443.38
7 Investments -                        -                          -                       67.40                   -                                
8 Turnover/Other Income 0.56                      0.26                        94.82                   326.69                 663.46
9 Profit /(Loss) before taxation 0.32                    (3.97)                       (2.83)                    (41.13)                  24.36

10 Provision for taxation (0.08)                    -                          -                       -                       -                                
11 MAT Credit Entitlement 0.03                     -                          -                       -                       -                                
12 Deferred Tax Liability -                       -                          1.23                     -                       -                                
13 Profit / (Loss) after taxation 0.21                     (3.97)                       (1.59)                    (41.13)                  24.36
14 Proposed dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
15  % of Share Holding 100% 100% 60% 100% 99%

Name of the Subsidiaries

Sl. No Name of Associates/Joint Venture Prime Developers 
(Partnership 

Firm)

Prime Newline AOP  
(Association of 

Persons)

Prime Mall 
Developer 

(Partnership Firm)

Prime Urban 
Developers 

(Partnership Firm)

Prathan City 
Developers LLP

1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021

2
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures
 held by the Company on the year 
ended 31st March, 2019

a No. of shares NA NA NA NA NA

b
Amount of Investment in Associates
/Joint Venture 1.00 202.20 1.00 0.67 0.67

c Extent of Holding % 50% 75% 50% 67% 67%

3
Description of how there is significant 
influence NA NA NA NA NA

4
Reason why the associate/Joint
venture is not consolidated NA NA NA NA NA

5
Networth attributable to Shareholding 
as per latest audited balance sheet 125.84 (13.09)                      (1,270.73)              (36.10)                   (80.02)                            

6 Profit / (Loss) for the year

a  Considered in consolidation (3.34)                     136.85                     (2.23)                     31.84                    (55.38)                            

b  Not considered in consolidation (3.34)                     45.62                       (1.12)                     15.68                    (27.28)                            
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Annexure II
Secretarial Audit Report

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 

To
The Members,
PRIME URBAN DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L70200TZ1936PLC000001
Door No. 83, 3rd Floor, Plot No. 4, Avinashi Main Road,
Near Petrol Bunk, Asher Nagar, Tirupur-641 603. 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by M/s. Prime Urban Development India Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of M/s. Prime Urban Development India Limited’s books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31st March, 
2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other recordsmaintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder.

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder.

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment.

v. The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’): -

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client and

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

  • Secretarial Standards with respect to Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by 
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) 

  • Listing agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations 
and Standards etc., mentioned above. 
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I further report that, during the year under review, there were no actions/ events in pursuance of the following 
Rules/Regulations requiring compliance thereof by the Company:

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and 

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018

 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

I further report that based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized 
representatives, there are no laws specifically applicable to the Company. 

I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the review of 
quarterly compliance reports taken on record by the Board of Directors and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the labour 
and environmental laws as applicable. 

I further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, 
has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and 
other designated professionals.

I further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board meetings and Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes 
of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

I further report during the audit period the Company has the following specific events:

i. Change in designation of Mr. AnujPatodia from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director of the company, 
liable to retire by rotation, w.e.f. September 3, 2020 and the remuneration paid to him for holding the position as 
the executive director was discontinued w.e.f. September 3, 2020. The Board in its meeting held on September 
3, 2020 took note of the same.

ii. Acquisition of Prime Urban North America LLC as a wholly of subsidiary of the Company with an objective of 
providing project management, marketing and manufacturing and operations management services in USA. 

I further report that there were no events or instances reported of:

 • Public / Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity. 

 • Redemption / buy-back of securities. 

 • Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc. 

 • Foreign technical collaborations

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 13th August, 2021      P.M. VAISHNAVI
       COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE
         ACS – 31824, CP - 22679 
         UDIN: A031824C000777888



25

‘Annexure A’
Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report Issued by Company Secretary in Practice 

To 

The Members, 
M/s. Prime Urban Development India Limited
CIN: L70200TZ1936PLC000001
Door No. 83, 3rd Flr, Plot No.4, 
Avinashi Main Road, Near Petrol Bunk, 
Asher Nagar, Tirupur 641603

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulation, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test 
basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Coimbatore
Date: 13th August, 2021      P.M. VAISHNAVI
       COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE
         ACS – 31824, CP - 22679 
         UDIN: A031824C000777888
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Annexure - III
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Activities

{Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014}

1. Brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to 
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

 Prime Urban Development India Limited (“Company), through its CSR initiatives will actively contribute to the 
Social, Economic and Environmental Development of our country and thereby create value for the nation. To 
generate through its CSR initiatives, a community goodwill for the Company which will help and reinforce a 
positive and socially responsible image of the Company as a responsible corporate entity.The Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”) has been recommended byCSR Committee and approved by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at the 
linkhttps://ptlonline.com/policies/

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee is as under:

*Mr.Purusottamdas Patodia elected as the chairman of the Committee upon resignation of Mr. Banwari Lal Singhal w.e.f 
August 2, 2021

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: For the last three financial years, the 
Company has incurred Average Net Loss of Rs. 386.77 Lakhs.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Not Applicable 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 
 (a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Nil 
 (b) Amount unspent, if any: Not Applicable 
 (c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

 *Give details of implementing agency

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the 
amount in its Board report.

 Not Applicable

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR 
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company, to the extent applicable. 

 The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with 
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company, to the extent applicable.

 Purusottamdas Patodia 
 Chairman and Managing Director & Chairman - CSR Committee
Place :  Mumbai
Date : August 13, 2021

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. 
No.

CSR 
project or 

activity 
identified

Sector in 
which 

the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or 
programs (1) 
Local area or 

other (2) 
Specify the 
State and 

District where 
projects or 

programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount spent 
on the 

projects or 
programs Sub 

- heads: (1) 
Direct 

expenditure 
on projects or 
programs (2) 
Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent 
Direct / through 
implementing 

agency*

NOT APPLICABLE

1 Mr.Purusottamdas Patodia * Chairman 
2 Mr.N. K. Bafna Member 
3 Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia Member 
4 Mr.Anuj Patodia Member 
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Annexure IV

Details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

a) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary 
and Managing Director during the financial year 2020-21, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 are as under:

*the designation of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director 
w.e.f. June 23, 2021
**the designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia changed from executive director to non-executive/non-independent director w.e.f. 
September 3, 2020

b) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
 In the financial year 2020-21, there was an increase of 72.56% in the median remuneration of employees.

c) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
 There were 6 Permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2021.

d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration:

 The average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
for the financial year i.e. 2020-21 was 0.95% whereas the decrease in the managerial remuneration for the 
same financial year was -65.05%

e) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Place :  Mumbai                                            Purusottamdas Patodia         
Date   : 13th August, 2021  Chairman and Managing Director

Sr. 
No.  

Name of Director/KMP and 
designation 

Remuneration of 
Director/KMP for 
Financial Year

2020-21 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

%increase/ 
(decrease) in 

Remuneration for 
Financial year

2020-21 
 

Ratio of 
remuneration of 
each Director to 

median 
remuneration of 

employees 
1 Purusottamdas Patodia 

Chairman and Managing Director  
13.35 (9.74)% 1.27 

2 Manoj Kumar Patodia* 
Vice-Chairman and Managing Director 

1.34 (90.48)% 14.08 

3 Anuj Patodia* 
Managing Director  

0.56 (96.21)% 0.05 

4 S. Udayananda 
Chief Financial Officer 

13.42 -- 1.28 

5 Darshi Shah 
Company Secretary 

12.12 89.67% 1.15 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Indian Economy
Introduction
The new decade kicked off with major disruptions in the global business environment - the pandemic and extreme 
climatic changes were just two of the triggers. For India, which aims at becoming a USD 5 trillion economy, 
dealing with Covid has brought forth glaring economic gaps but also the economy's key areas of strength and 
opportunities.

Indian real estate sector has witnessed high growth in the recent times with rise in demand for office as well as 
residential spaces. Indian real estate attracted U$ 5 billion institutional investments in 2020, equivalent to 93% of 
transactions recorded in the previous year. Investments from private equity (PE) players and VC funds reached 
US$ 4.06 billion in 2020. The real estate segment attracted private equity investments worth Rs. 23,946 crores 
(US$ 3,241 million) across 19 deals in Q4 FY21. Investments in the sector grew 16x compared with Rs. 1,470 
crores (US$ 199 million) in Q4 FY20. In value terms, these investments were 80% of that in 2020 and 48% of 
2019, according to a report by Knight Frank.

According to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade Policy (DPIIT), 
construction is the third-largest sector in terms of FDI inflow. FDI in the sector (including construction 
development and construction activities) stood at US$ 42.97 billion between April 2000 and September 2020.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has given its approval for the Real Estate Investment Trust 
(REIT) platform, which will allow all kind of investors to invest in the Indian real estate market. It would create an 
opportunity worth Rs. 1.25 trillion (US$ 19.65 billion) in the Indian market in the coming years.
South India: Real Estate
A robust establishment of skill-based manufacturing industries has led to fast paced urbanization in south India, 
housing around 102.8mn people in just urban areas (27.3% of India’s total urban population). Tamil Nadu, Andhra 
Pradesh, Karnataka and Kerala house close to 50% of the total number of SEZs in the country. Together with 
industrial growth, IT remains the dominant driver for the real estate market. 
About Tamil Nadu – Our core market:
Coimbatore – Manchester of South India
Climatically well placed Coimbatore and logistically centred and business growth oriented City in Tamil Nadu. 
Located between tourist’s attractions like Ooty, Kodaikanal and Kotagiri and border district of Kerala gives added 
advantage to the City. Along with Textile, it also houses Engineering, Automobile parts manufacturing & IT/ITeS 
as the major industries.

Bus Rapid Transit System, Metro Rail, Expansion of Airport are few factors that will provide growth opportunities. 
Around 3 special IT Economic Zones have been set up here, with the Government offering special schemes to 
promote real estate activity.

Accordingly, at Prime Urban, we have explored two projects in and around Coimbatore which is elaborated below:
Project Wise Details
At Prime Urban we are currently engaged with the following projects:

• Prime Crest – Prime Crest is our Joint Development Project. We have entered into Joint Development 
Agreement through our Partnership Firm, Messrs Prime Urban Developers with the owners of land situated at 
Coimbatore for construction of apartments in the said land and the project is almost completed and in the verge 
of handing over to the prospective customers.

• Developed Land Project - A land development project is taken up at Hill Station, Kotagiri, near Ooty through 
our Partnership Firm, M/s. Prathan City Developers in which the close gated land development project is taken 
up and to be sold in piece and parcels to prospective buyers.

Further we are actively exploring other opportunities for Residential and Commercial Projects in the State of Tamil 
Nadu.
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Overall outlook:
The Global Covid-19 Pandemic during the financial year 2021 and beginning of FY 22 has shocked the entire 
world which has slowed down the business and has impacted the market in which real estate sector is not 
exempted. It will take some more time for recovery to bounce back which is difficult to predict at the given 
situation.

Risk and concerns:
The present pandemic situation has halted most of the realty projects’ construction activities and as on year end 
March’2021 the market intake was very slow. Now on this given date the markets were partially opened and 
getting some positive response from the market. The risk of hike in the construction material cost and labour cost 
is to be considered while execution of the projects, which is noted by the Management.
Opportunities and Threats:
Opportunities are plenty in the field of Realty developments as explained in earlier para. The Company is 
exploring the various opportunity with multiple designed projects like Residential Apartments, Commercial 
Building annexed and Development Land Projects.
As far as Threats is concerned, the external threats, like unforeseen Pandemic has put the projects in to a 
grinding halt.  Others threats of hike in cost of materials and cost of labour are to be considered in execution of 
projects.

Internal Control Systems and adequacy:
The Company is having very good internal control systems and it is adequate to the volume and line of business.  
The financials are undergoing internal audits by the designated appointed Internal Auditors.
Disclaimers:
Certain statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” may not be based on historical information or 
facts and may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations, 
including but not limited to those relating to general business plans and strategy of the Company, its future 
outlook and growth prospects, future developments in its businesses, its competitive and regulatory environment 
and management’s current views and assumptions which may not remain constant due to risks and uncertainties. 
Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a 
difference to the Company’s operations include global and Indian demand supply conditions, finished goods 
prices, stock availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in 
Government regulations, tax regimes, competitors actions, economic developments within India and the 
countries within which the Company conducts business and other factors such as litigation and labour 
negotiations. Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any statement, on basis of 
any subsequent development, information or events, or otherwise. The “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” 
does not constitute a prospectus, offering circular or offering memorandum or an offer to acquire any shares and 
should not be considered as a recommendation that any investor should subscribe for or purchase any of the 
Company’s securities.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Prime Urban Development India Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion:
1.  We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Urban Development India Ltd (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Statement of cashflows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone financial statements”).

2.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2021 give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2021, and loss, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters:
4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

 We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

6. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

7.  In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements:
8. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 

to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity 
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Standalone) specified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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9. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements:
11. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

12. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

 (i)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 (ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 (iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

 (iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

 (v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

13. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that 
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

14. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

15. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

16. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
17. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit.
 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of 

those books.
 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the 

Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 

the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
 (e)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2021 taken on record by the board of directors, none 

of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March 2021 from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.
 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financials controls with reference to financial statements.

 (g) In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the 
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration for the year ended on March 31, 2021 has paid/provided by the Company to its 
directors in accordance with the provisions of the section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone financial statements.
  ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses.
  iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
 (i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, 

as amended:
  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to 

its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

18. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub section 
(11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure - B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

For L.U.Krishnan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN – 001527S

P.K.Manoj
Place: Chennai  Partner
Date:  22.06.2021 Membership No.207550

UDIN: 21207550AAAAEO2732
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Prime Urban Development India Ltd (“the Company”) as at 
31st March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended and as at on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference 
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that,
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March 2021, based on the internal control 
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For L.U.Krishnan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN – 001527S

P.K.Manoj
Place: Chennai Partner
Date:  22.06.2021 Membership No.207550

UDIN: 21207550AAAAEO2732
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 15 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report)
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2021 we report that:
(i)  In respect of the Company’s fixed assets
 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 

Equipment.
 (b) The Management has not conducted any physical verification of fixed assets during the year. However, the Company has the program 

of physical verification of fixed assets at reasonable intervals of time and to deal with material discrepancies identified on such 
verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title 
deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. In Respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and 
disclosed as property, plant and equipment in the Standalone financial statements, the lease agreements in the name of the company.

(ii)  The activities of the Company did not involve purchase of inventory and sale of goods during the year and accordingly Clause (ii) of the 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, 
firm, Limited Liability Partnership, or other parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). 
Accordingly, clauses from (iii) (a) to (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has no loans, investments, guarantee and security 
which meets the requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits and does not have any unclaimed 
deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered 
by the Company.

(vii)  a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion, 
the Company is regular is in depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including income tax, sales tax, 
service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it 
and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six months form date they 
become payable.

 b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, value 
added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited on 
account of dispute except for the below:

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank, and government. The Company has not issued any debentures during the year and does 
not have any outstanding dues in respect of debenture holders.

(ix)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during 
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during our audit.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the Company has 
paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of the section 197 of the 
Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares of fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
For L.U.Krishnan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN – 001527S
P.K.Manoj

Place: Chennai Partner
Date:  22.06.2021 Membership No.207550

UDIN: 21207550AAAAEO2732

Name of the Nature of Dues Amount  Period for which the Forum where
Statute   (Rs in Lakhs) amount Relates  Dispute is pending    
Income Tax  Income Tax 517.40 A.Y. 2009-10 Hon’ble High
Act,1961     Court of Madras
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BALANCE SHEET    < in Lacs
  Particulars  Note As at As at
    31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
I. ASSETS
 (1) Non-current assets   
  a. Property, plant and equipment  3  487.34 637.47
  b. Financial Assets
    (i) Investments in subsidiaries and associates 4(a)(i) 4,699.42 4,692.19
    (ii) Other investments 4(a)(ii) 5.00 5.00
    (iii) Other financial assets 4(b) 9.23 12.70
  c. Deferred tax assets  14.58 14.58
                                                 Total Non-current Assets  5,215.57 5,361.94
      (2)   Current assets   
  a. Inventories 5 1,060.99 1,647.05
  b. Financial Assets
   (i)  Investments 4(c)  208.17 131.87
   (ii) Trade receivables 4(d)  - 8.66
   (iii) Cash and cash equivalants 4(e)  56.34 17.54
   (iv) Bank balances other than above 4(f) 7.86 7.86
   (v) Loans to corporates 4(g) - 150.00
   (vi) Loans to Associates/Firms in which Co is a Partner 4(h) 842.34 710.49
  c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 219.03 227.90
  d. Other current assets 7 175.66 115.28
   Total Current Assests  2,570.39 3,016.65
   Total Assets  7,785.96 8,378.59
     II.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
  EQUITY 
  a. Equity Share Capital 8(a) 532.87 532.87
  b. Other Equity 8(b) 33.90 181.12
   Total Equity  566.77 713.99
  LIABILITIES
       1) Non-current liabilities   
           Financial Liabilities
  a. Borrowings 9(a) 570.70 548.25
        b. Other financial liabilities 9(b) 1,387.15 1,367.54
                    Total Non-current liabilities  1,957.85 1,915.79
       2) Current liabilities    
  a. Financial Liabilities      
       Borrowings 10(a) 1,138.55  1,522.75
       Total outstanding dues to creditors othan than micro 
       enterprises and small enterprises 10(b)  3,834.44 4,073.48
       Other financial liabilities 10 (c) 24.60 85.47
  b. Other current liabilities 11(a)  263.75 67.11
                        Total Current Liabilities  5,261.34 5,748.81
                      Total Equity and Liabilities  7,785.96 8,378.59
  Significant Accounting Policies 1 & 2  
  Additional information to the financial statements 21

As per our report of even date attached               For and on behalf of the Board  
For  L.U.Krishnan & Co Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia  
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director 
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088)  
P.K.Manoj                                                    
Partner   M.No.207550
UDIN: 21207550AAAAEO2732                                       
    
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda  Darshi Shah 
Date   : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) and CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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  Particulars Note Year Ended   Year Ended  
   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Income    
1 Revenue from operations 12   755.32 5,342.02
2 Other income 13  271.25 107.83
3 Total Revenue (1 + 2)   1,026.57 5,449.85
     
4 Expenses     
 (a) Cost of Land sold and land development cost 14  430.20  215.53
 (b) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  15  24.71  4,702.47
 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in-trade 16  310.57 127.62
 (d) Employee benefit expenses 17   60.91 147.16
 (e) Finance costs 18   159.29 224.96
 (f)  Depreciation and amortisation expenses  29.42  37.49
 (g) Other expenses 19   157.48 756.89
              Total expenses (a to g)  1,172.58  6,212.12
5 Profit/(-) Loss before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax   (146.01) (762.27)
6 Exceptional expenses 20  -   - 
7 Profit/(-) Loss before extraordinary items and tax   (146.01) (762.27)
8 Extraordinary items   -  
9 Profit/(-) Loss Before Tax   (146.01) (762.27)
10 Tax expense :    
 (a) Current Tax  -   -  
 (b) MAT  -  -  
 (c)  Deferred Tax   -  -  
 (d) Tax for prior year’s  (2.30) 2.77
11 Profit/(-) Loss for the year  (148.31) (759.50)
 Other Comprehensive Income    
12 Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
 Impact on remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligation  1.09 27.52
 Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year  (147.22) (731.98)
13 Earnings Per Equity Share :    
 Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share before exceptional/extraordinary items   (0.56) (2.85)
 Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share after exceptional/extraordinay items  (0.56)  (2.85)
    (Face value of Rs. 2 each)   
Significant Accounting Policies            1 & 2   
Additional information to financial statements 21 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS    < in Lacs

As per our report of even date attached               For and on behalf of the Board  
For  L.U.Krishnan & Co Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia  
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director 
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088)  
P.K.Manoj                                                    
Partner   M.No.207550                                       
UDIN: 21207550AAAAEO2732    
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda Darshi Shah 
Date   : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) and CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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  Particulars   Year Ended  Year Ended   
   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities    
     Net Profit/(Loss) before tax, exceptional items and after other    (144.92) (734.75)
     comprehensive income  
   Adjustments for:   
  Depreciation and amortisation expense  29.42  37.49
  (Profit) / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  - 0.88
  Interest income  (95.37)  (72.22)
  Dividend receipts  (1.01) (4.04)
  Finance Cost  159.29  216.57
 Operating profit before working capital changes   (52.60)  (556.06)
   Changes in Working Capital:   
  Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables  (239.03)  (425.06)
  Increase / (Decrease) in provisions  -  (20.11)
  Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities  (60.87) (33.72)
  Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities  196.63  15.52
  (Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables  8.66 2,006.20
  (Increase) / Decrease in inventories  586.06  234.80
  (Increase) / Decrease in Short Term loans and advances  18.15  (701.50)
  (Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets  3.47 (0.40)
  (Increase) / Decrease in other current assets  (60.39)  127.56
 Cash Generated from Operations  400.09   714.66
  Taxes paid (net of refunds)  6.58  (10.65)
 Net cash generated from operations before exceptional items 406.67   704.01
  Exceptional items    - 
 Net cash generated from operating activities  406.67   704.01
 B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:    
  Purchase of property, plant and equipments /intangible  assets (38.91)   (4.57)
  Sale of tangible/intangible  assets   159.62 61.93
  Dividend received  1.01 4.04
  Interest received  95.37 72.22
  Sale of investments  (76.29) 384.69
  Investment in Subsidiary  (7.24) - 
Net cash from investing activities  133.56  518.31
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities    
  Repayment of Long Term borrowings     42.06  69.64
  Net Proceeds/ repayment short term borrowings  (384.20) (1,116.17)
  Finance Cost  (159.30)   (216.57)
 Net cash used in Financing Activities   (501.45)   (1,263.10)
 Net increase in cash and Cash equivalants  38.80 (40.78)
 Cash and Bank balances at the beginning of the year   17.54  58.32
 Cash and Bank balances at the end of the year    56.34   17.54
  Reconciliation of Cash and Bank balances with the Balance sheet  
 Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet   64.20 25.40
 Less : Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash equivalents   
           Margin Money Deposit    -
          Unpaid dividend  7.86 7.86
 Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the year end  56.34  17.54

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

As per our report of even date attached               For and on behalf of the Board  
For  L.U.Krishnan & Co Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia  
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director 
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088)  
P.K.Manoj                                                    
Partner   M.No.207550                                       
UDIN: 21207550AAAAEO2732 
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda  Darshi Shah 
Date   : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) and CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Note 1 & 2
Significant Accounting Policies
1. Company overview:
 The Prime Urban Development India Limited (“the Company”) is public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and 

has registered office at No.83, Site No.4, 3rd Floor, Near Petrol Bunk, Avinashi Road, Gandhinagar Post, Tirupur Tamil Nadu. It 
is incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

 The Company is having business of Realty and textile.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:
 2.01.  Basis of Accounting:
 (i) Compliance with Ind AS :
 The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) 

as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 216 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

 (ii)  Historical Cost Convention :
 The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for the 

following :
  1. certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
  2. assets held for sale – measured at lower of cost to sell;
  3. defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value;

 (iii)  Classification of assets and liabilities :
 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle (twelve 

months) and other cirteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

 (iv)  Rounding of amounts:
 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement 

of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 

2.02: Use of estimates:
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent 
liabilities as at the date of the financial statement and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to the estimates is recognized prospectively.

2.03: Property, Plant and Equipment:
 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property, Plant and Equipment under the Indian GAAP as on 

31st March, 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to Ind AS.

 All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.  All costs relating to the 
acquisition and installation of fixed assets are capitalized and include borrowing costs directly attributable to construction or 
acquisition of fixed assets, up to the date the asset is put to use.

 Capital Work-in-Progress: Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are 
carried at cost, comprising direct cost and attributable interest. Once it becomes available for use, their cost is re-classified to 
appropriate caption and are subjected to depreciation.

2.04: Impairment of Assets :
 The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that any asset/group of assets may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying value of such assets is reduced to recoverable amount and the impairment 
loss is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. If at Balance Sheet date, there is any indication that a previously assessed 
impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that effect.

2.05: Depreciation: 
 a.  Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 

2013.
 b.  Assets sold/discarded/demolished during the year; no depreciation is provided for.
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2.06: Revenue Recognition:
 Revenue from contracts with customers The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of textile and real estate project 

revenue. 

 Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue recognition model and provides a five step 
application approach to be followed for revenue recognition. 

 • Identify the contract(s) with a customer; 
 • Identify the performance obligations; 
 • Determine the transaction price; 
 • Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; 
 • Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an 

amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

 a) Real Estate projects:
  Revenue from real estate projects is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred and it 

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company.  Losses expected in bringing a contract to completion are 
recognized in the income statement as soon as they are forecast. 

 i)  Sale of undivided share of land under group housing is recognized upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership as per terms of the contracts executed with the buyers and is net of all costs. 

 ii) Revenue from executor firms/AOP in which the company is a partner/member are recognized upon the said entity 
recognizing their respective revenues.

 iii)  Revenue from contractual projects is recognized on the basis of completion of a physical proportion of the contract work 
based on executed agreements entered into by the company or by firms/AOP in which the company is a partner/member.

 iv) Revenue from sale of land and development rights is recognized upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership, no continuing management involvement and effective control are retained and the amount of revenue can be 
reliably measured. The transfer of risks and rewards vary depending on the individual terms of the contracts of sale.

 b)  Textile: Revenue from sale of goods are recognised on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership to the buyer which 
generally coincides with shipment. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates if any

 c)  Other Income: 
      Dividend income on investments is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.
    Interest Income is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amount invested and the rate of interest.

2.07: Valuation of Inventories:
 a. Costs of materials are determined using specific identification method. 
 b. Cost of reality inventory at value converted the land into stock-in-trade and other residential unit and land at specific 

identification method and other cost on specific identification method.

2.08: Borrowing Cost:  
 Borrowing cost related to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as part of the cost of such asset up to the 

date when such asset is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing cost is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.09: Employee benefits:
 Short term employee benefits including accrued liability for Leave Encashment (other than termination benefits) which are payable 

within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render service are paid/provided during the year as per the 
Rules of the Company.

 Defined Contribution Plans:
 Company’s contributions paid/payable during the year to Provident and Family Pension Funds, and Employees State Insurance are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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 Defined Benefit Plans:
 The Employees’ Gratuity Fund Scheme covered by the Group Gratuity cum-Life Assurance Policy of LIC of India is a Defined 

Benefit Plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method which 
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional amount of employees benefit entitlement and measures each unit 
separately to build up the final obligation.

2.10: Foreign Currency Transactions:
 Initial recognition :
  Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date 

of the transaction or at the rates that closely approximate to the rate at the date of the transaction.
 Measurement :
  Foreign currency monetary items of the Company outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are restated at year end exchange 

rates.
  Non-monetary items carried at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial transactions. 
  Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 

the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on transaction of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated 
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item.

 Treatment of exchange difference:
  Exchange differences arising on settlement/restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company 

are recognised as income or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
  With regard to the exchange rate difference in Investment In Foreign Subsidiary, the difference in exchange rate is recognized 

in Statement of Profit and Loss Account and given effect to the Investment Value in standalone financials.  The same 
exchange difference is recognized as OCI in consolidated financial statements.

  In Consolidated financials, the exchange rates adopted for conversion of the foreign subsidiary company financials in to 
Indian Rupees as rates prevailing as on closing date of report for Balance sheet items and average exchange rates in case 
of revenue/expenditure items.

2.11: Taxation:
 a)  Provision for Current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year or computed in accordance with the 

Income-Tax Act, 1961 and recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly 
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

 b)  Deferred tax on account of timing differences, between taxable income and accounting income is recognized using the tax 
rates and laws that have been substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the 
extent there is reasonable certainty that these would be realized in future.

2.12: Lease Rentals:
 Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of time 

pattern of the Company’s benefit.

2.13: Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable 

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are 
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end 
of the reporting period.

 A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will 
not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. 

 The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
2.14: Earnings Per Share policy:
 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period is adjusted for events of bonus issue, bonus elements in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse 
share split (consolidation of shares).

2.15: Cash and Cash equivalents policy:
 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at 

call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16: Financial Instrument:
 Financial instruments
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 

another entity.
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As per our report of even date attached               For and on behalf of the Board  
For L.U.Krishnan & Co  Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia 
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director 
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088)
P.K.Manoj                   
Partner: M.No.207550
UDIN 21207550AAAAEO2732    
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda Darshi Shah 
Date   : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) & CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

 Financial assets
 Initial recognition and measurement
 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit 

or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular day trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

 Subsequent measurement
 Equity Investments.  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 

for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are 
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument 
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

 If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale 
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.  

 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

 Financial liabilities 
 Initial recognition and measurement 
 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, 

payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial 
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

 Subsequent measurement 

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated 

upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. 

 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.  
 De-recognition 
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

2.17: Exceptional Items:
 When an item of income or expense within profit or loss from ordinary is of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is 

relevant to explain the performance of the company for the year, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional 
items.
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                                       Particulars     As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
    No of shares  No of shares 

 

 
  
  

  

< in LacsNotes to the Financial Statements

 

< in Lacs
   0202.30.13 / 1202.30.13 dednE raeY  
Name of the Partners in the firm/AOP Total Capital Share of Profit or Loss
   Rs. in lacs
Prime Developers :    

   

Note 4 : Financial Assets     
4(a) Non-current Investments - Un-quoted     
 (i) Subsidiaries - Trade    
 (1) Equity Shares fully paid up :    
  ATL Textile Processors Limited   10,37,450  514.45  10,37,450  514.45 
  Manoj Yarn Processors Limited   50,900  -    50,900  -   
  PeeDee Yarn Processors Limited  10,900  -    10,900  -   
  Patodia Developers Private Limited  10,000  -    10,000  -   
  Srivarsha Realtors Private Limited  10,000  0.36  10,000  0.36 
  Newline Buildtech Private Limited (* Note below)  58,02,925  3,971.84  58,02,925  3,971.84 
  ( Shares are of face value of Rs. 10/- each)    
  Prime Urban North America INC  99,000 7.23   -  
  Note: Note: During the previous Year ended 31.03.2020, Dimunition in value   4,493.88   4,486.65 
  of Investment in Subsidiary Companies recognized and reduced in value of 
  respective Investments   
      4,493.88   4,486.65 

 (2) Investment in Partnership firms / AOP    
  Prime Newline AOP    202.20   202.20 
  Prime Developers    1.00   1.00 
  Prime Mall Developers     1.00   1.00 
  Prathan City Developers LLP   0.67   0.67 
  Prime Urban Developers    0.67   0.67 
  Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments    205.54   205.54 
  Investments in subsidiaries and associates    4,699.42  4,692.19 
      
 (ii) Other entities - Non-Trade    
  Tirupur Infrastructure Development Company Limited (500 shares of Rs.1000 each) 500 5.00  500  5.00 
      5.00   5.00
   Sub-total (b) (i) + (ii)    4,704.42   4,697.19

1 Prime Urban Development India Limited 1.00   50.00% 
2 Prime Hitech Admin Serivces LLP 1.00   50.00% 
  2.00   100.00% 
    
Prime Mall Developers :  Share of Profit Share of Loss

1 Prime Urban Development India Limited 1.00   50.00% 66.66%
2 Biodegradable Products India Ltd (formerly Pudumjee Plant Laboratories Limited) 1.00   25.00% 33.34%
3 Indraneel Properties Ltd (w.e.f 4.11.2017)  -    25.00%  -   
  2.00   100.00% 100.00%
Prime Newline - AOP :    
1 Prime Urban Development India Limited 202.20   75.00% 75.00%
2 Newline Buildtech Private Limited 67.40   25.00% 25.00%
  269.60   100.00% 100.00%
Prime Urban Developers    
1 Prime Urban Development India Limited  0.67  67.00% 67.00%
2 Paul & Lord Enterprises LLP  0.33  33.00% 33.00%
  1.00   100.00% 100.00%
Prathan City Developers LLP    
1 Prime Urban Development India Limited  0.67  67.00% 67.00%
2 Mr. T. Paul Sugumaran  0.33  33.00% 33.00%
  1.00   100.00% 100.00%
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Notes to the Financial Statements <  in Lacs
             etoN sralucitraP   As at 31st As at 31st 
               March, 2021 March, 2020

  
     

  
  

 
  

 
 

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

 

4(b) Other financial assets   
 (i) Security Deposits  9.23  12.70 
  Sub-total  9.23    12.70 
    
4(c) Current Investments (Unquoted )    
 Investments in Birla Mutual funds - Cash Plus fund  83.33 -  
 Balance in Partners' Current account   124.84 131.87 
  Sub-total (a)  208.17 131.87 
4(d) Trade receivables   
 Considered good - Unsecured   -  8.66 
  Sub-total (c)  -  8.66 
    
4(e) Cash and cash equivalants   
 Cash and cash equivalents  
 (i) Cash on hand   0.68  1.78 
 (ii) Balances with bank in current accounts   55.42  15.34 
 (iii) Flexi Deposits in Bank   0.24  0.42 
    56.34  17.54 
4(f) Bank balances other than above   
 Unpaid dividend account *   7.86  7.86 
 In Deposits under lien   -     -   
  * Shall transfer when due to IEPF, still not due for transfer   7.86   7.86 
  Total  64.20   25.40 
4(g)    
 (i) Loans and advances to :  
     - Loans receivable from Corporte - Considered good, Unsecured    -   150.00 
    -   150.00 
4(h) (ii) Loans and advances to :  
 - Loan receivable from Subsidiary considered good unsecured   6.32 9.20 
   Advance to others   0.02 0.29 
 - Loans receivable from Associates/Firms in which Company is a Partner - 
   Considered good, Unsecured    836.00 701.00 
    
  Sub-total (e)  842.34 710.49 
Note-5 Inventories  
    
 Valued at Cost or Net realisable value whichever is lower  
 (i) Realty Inventory ( Villa and development rights)   1,060.99 1,647.05 
    
  Sub-total (b)  1,060.99 1,647.05 
 No inventory is written off during the year  
    
Note 6  Current Tax Assets (Net)  
      Advance tax   219.03  239.11 
     Less: Provisions for Taxation    -   11.21 
    219.03  227.90 
Note 7 Other current assets  
 Interest accrued on Loans & deposits   141.93 58.30 
 Prepayments   1.99 2.53 
 Refund due or balances with government authorities   31.58 41.53 
 Advances to suppliers   0.05 12.76 
 Advances to employees and others   0.11 0.16 
  Sub-total (f)  175.66 115.28 
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                                       Particulars    As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  
   Number  Rupees in lacs Number  Rupees in lacs

Note 8: Equity Share Capital and Other Equity  
(a) : Equity Share Capital

 Authorised

   

  

   
Note (a) : Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

< in Lacs

                                       Particulars    As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  
   Number  Rupees in lacs Number  Rupees in lacs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,66,43,600 532.87 2,66,43,600 532.87
Add: Shares issued during the year   -     -    -   
Less: Shares bought back during the year  -     -     -     -   
Less: Any other movement  -     -     -     -   
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  2,66,43,600   532.87   2,66,43,600  532.87

Note (b) - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity Shares in the Company :

< in Lacs

Notes to the Financial Statements 

                                       Particulars    As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  
   Number  Rupees in lacs Number  Rupees in lacs

 Anjana Syntex Company Limited 56,60,655 21.25% 56,60,655 21.25%
 Pat Credit Limited 60,09,675 22.56% 60,09,675 22.56%
 Meenal Patodia 17,24,915 6.47% 17,24,915 6.47%

< in Lacs

Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 6,25,00,000 1,250.00 6,25,00,000 1,250.00
Preference Shares of Rs.100 each 7,50,000 750.00 7,50,000 750.00
Issued    
Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 2,66,44,300 532.89 2,66,44,300 532.89
Subscribed and paid up:    
Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 2,66,43,600 532.87 2,66,43,600 532.87
 2,66,43,600 532.87 2,66,43,600 532.87

Note (c) -  Terms/Rights attached to equity shares :- The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs.2 
per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.    

    
Note (d) - There was no issue of shares alloted as fully paid up pursuant to Contract(s) without payment being received in cash 

or buyback or bonus shares in the preceeding five years 
   
Note (e) - Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors, if any is subject to approval of the Shareholders in the Annual General 

Meeting, except in case of interim Dividend.    

Note (f) -  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held  by the shareholders.    
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                                       Particulars    As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  
Note 8(b) : Other Equity  
  

 

    
 (i) Securities Premium
  Beginning and end of the Year  

117.00 117.00

117.00 117.00

 (ii) General Reserve: 

 

 
    (iii) Retained Earnings  

 
    

 

 

Note 9 Non-Current Liabilities 
 

       Financial Liabilities
 9(a)  Other financial borrowings

  
Secured 

  
Deferred payment liabilities 

   Hire-purchase loan 

 

58.07 33.10

   
Un-secured

   Loans and Advances from related parties 

 

512.63 515.15 

   
 570.70 548.25  Nature of Security :

  Vehicle purchase loans are secured against vehicles acquired
     Terms of Repayment :
  Vehicle purchase loan liabilities and terms to pay
  last instalment due is on 01.09.2025 and rate of
  interest is 8.71% per annum.
  The Unsecured Loans taken from wholly owned subsidiary
  Company Viz. ATL Textile Processors Ltd
  as advance on long term funding.

  

< in LacsNotes to the Financial Statements 

i Securities Premium  117.00   117.00 
ii General Reserve  1,950.71   1,950.71 
iii Retained Earnings  (2,033.81)  (1,886.59) 
   33.90  181.12 

 Beginning of the Year  1,950.71   1,950.71 
 Add : Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss  -     -   
 End of the Year  1,950.71   1,950.71 

 Beginning of the year (1,886.59) (1,154.61)
 Add : Profit/(Loss) after Tax  (147.22) (731.98)
  (2,033.81)  (1,886.59)
 Less: Dividend and dividend tax paid  -  
 End of the year (2,033.81)  (1,886.59)
   Total 33.90  181.12 

During the year ended 31st March 2015, the Company has 
issued 39,00,000 equity shares face value of Rs. 2/- and share 
premium of Rs. 3/- each. The said premium is credited to 
Securities Premium account

9(b)   Other financial liabilities
  Due to a Partnership firm in which Company is a partner  1,387.15 1,367.54 
    1,387.15 1,367.54 

Note 10 : Current Liabilities
 (a)  Current Borrowings
        Secured  
 

 

   Un-secured
  From Corporates  991.95 1,482.25 
  From a Director 

 
146.60 40.50 

                                   Total Current Borrowings (a) 
 

1,138.55 1,522.75
  Nature of Security :

a Unsecured Loan from Corporates and Director, having interest 
at rates of 9% p.a. payable within one year.
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                                       Particulars    As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  

10  (b)  Trade payable
 (i) Due to suppliers and service providers  17.82 
   (Also refer Note No. 2.02 regarding dues to MSM others)
 (ii) Due to a Subsidiary Company  3,601.33
 (iii) Due to a AOP in which Company is a Member  215.29 
                                                                                 Sub-total (b)  3,834.44 

78.33 

3,603.55 
391.60 

4,073.48 
10  (c) Other Financial Liabilities
 (i) Current maturities of finance lease obligations  16.08 
 (ii) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.52 
 (iii) Unclaimed dividend *  7.85 
 (iv) Security Deposit  0.15 
        * Shall transfer when due to IEPF, still not due for transfer 
                                                                                 Sub-total (c)  24.60 

30.00 
47.46 

7.86 
0.15 

85.47 
11 Other current liabilities

         Advance from customers 260.34 
  Statutory dues payable  3.41 
    263.75 

61.00
6.11 

67.11 

 

 
                                                                                            Total  5,261.34 5,748.81 

< in Lacs
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Note 12 : Revenue from operations :
Textile Segment :  
 Textiles - Sale of Traded Goods - Cotton Yarn  -

-

4,938.02

                                                                           sub-total - textile                                 4,938.02
Realty Segment :
 Sale of Land 33.12 -
 Sale of Land - converted into stock in trade 722.20 328.11 
                                                                           sub-total - realty                                  328.11
Other Operating Revenue :
 Export Incentive - 75.89 

                                              sub-total - Other operating revenue - 75.89
                                                                                                         Total                5,342.02
Note 13 : Other Income :   

   Interest income
   Profit on sale of assets
   Dividend income
   Share of Profit of AOP in which the Company is a Member
   Share of Profit of Firm in which the Company is a Partner
   Liabilities no longer payable written back
   Profit on sale of Investments
   Miscellaneous income

5.16 -
 95.37   72.22  

 1.01   4.04  
136.85 -
31.84 -

-  26.46  

 1.02   0.36  
-  4.75  

                                                                                                   Total  107.83 271.25 

755.32

755.32 

Note 14 : Cost of Land   
    Cost of Land held as Stock-in-Trade 275.48 107.19

  Cost of Land 154.72 60.20
 Road Laying expenses - 48.14
   430.20 215.53  
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                                       Particulars    As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  

< in Lacs
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Note 15 : Purchase of Stock-in-Trade :   
 Purchase of Traded Goods - Cotton yarn -  4,673.12
 Cost of Purchases - Realty (Villas & Development Rights)  24.71   29.35  
   24.71   4,702.47
Note 16 : Changes in Stock of Finished Goods and Stock - in- trade   
 Opening balance:   
  Stock in Trade -  52.14  
    Realty Inventory  1,150.23   1,225.71  
                                                                                                      (A)   1,150.23  1,277.85  
Less :  Closing balance:   
    Realty Inventory 839.66   1,150.23  
                                                                                                      (B)  1,150.23  839.66

                                                                              Net Value   (A) -(B)                       310.57   127.62

Note 17 : Employee benefits expense
 Salary and Wages  58.34 137.58 
   Contribution to provident and other funds   0.38 4.00 
   Staff welfare expenses  2.19 5.58 
                                                                       Total  60.91 147.16 
Note 18 : Finance costs
 Interest on Borrowings  159.29  216.57 
 Interest others -  8.39 
                                                                       Total  159.29 224.96 
Note 19 : Other expenses 
 Insurance  3.24 9.72
 Rates and taxes  2.25 3.77
 Sitting Fees 1.95  1.85
 Electricity 4.08  8.15
 Rent  18.08 18.94
 Repairs - Building  0.40 0.61
 Repairs  - others  2.09 9.18
 Communication Expenses   2.15 12.41
 Travelling and Conveyance 13.29  46.33
 Sales Commission  5.46  54.03
 Freight and Forwarding   0.01 129.95
  Donation   0.02 0.08
 Legal and Professional fees  14.10 14.97
  Auditors Remuneration   1.40 1.24
  Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment  - 0.88
  Advances no longer recoverable written off - 12.00
 Provision for dimunition in value of Investments - 138.82
  Share of Loss in Partnership Firm  60.95 101.77
   Share of Loss in Association of Persons (AOP)  - 59.96
 Bank Charges  0.10 24.56
   Miscellaneous expenses   27.91 107.67
  157.48 756.89
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< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

21 :  Additional information to financial statements
21.01: Contingent liabilities and commitments  :

21.04: Auditors Remuneration (excluding service tax/GST):

21.02: Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

21.03: Other Notes
 a. In the opinion of the management, assets other than property, plant and equipment and non-current investments have a 

value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

 b. The accounts of certain Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Loans & Advances and Banks are however, subject to 
formal confirmations/reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. The management does not expect any material 
difference affecting the current period’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

21.05: Employee Benefit Plans :
Defined contribution plans :
The company contributed to Provident Fund and Gratuity to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the 
Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll cost to fund benefits.

 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

As at 31st 
March, 2020 

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)   
 Disputed Tax Demands (Including Interest up to the date of demand)   
 (i)Income Tax 

 (Tax deposits  Rs.242.42  lacs ; pr.yr.207.48 lacs) 
The Income Tax liability for AY 2009-10 for Rs.551.09 lacs is under 
appeal before the Honb’le Madras High Court and the High Court has 
given stay against the order of Income Tax Appellate Tribunal and 
collection of demand.    

743.09 743.09 
 

   

Particulars As at 31st 
March, 2021 

As at 31st 
March, 2020 

(i) Principal  amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 

NIL NIL 

(ii) Interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day 

NIL NIL 

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year   NIL NIL 
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 

of the accounting year 
NIL NIL 

(v) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid. 

NIL NIL 

 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 
Audit fees 1.05 0.90 
Other fees 0.25 0.34 
Total  1.40  1.24 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-2020  
a. Provident Fund Contribution 0.61 0.65 
b. Gratuity -- 1.20 
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a.  Defined Benefit plan :
Gratuity: 
In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“The Gratuity 
plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement 
(subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of employment that are 
based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment.  Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by 
actuarial valuation on the reporting date and the Company makes annual contribution to the gratuity fund administered by 
Life Insurance Corporation of India under the respective scheme.

b.   The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

Notes:  i. The entire Plan Assets are managed by LIC
           ii. The expected return on Plan Assets is as furnished by LIC
 iii. The estimate of future salary increase takes in to account inflation, likely increments, promotions and other 

relevant factors.

01.  Assumptions 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 
  Discount Rate  7.00%  7.25% 
  Salary Escalation  7.00%  7.00% 

02.  Changes in the present value of obligation   
  Present value of obligation as at beginning of year 13.80  49.92  
  Interest Cost 1.00  3.74  
     Current Service Cost 1.02  2.16  
  Benefits paid (1.03)  (3.77)  
  Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligations 14.98  (38.23)  
  Present value of obligations as at the end of year 29.77  13.80  

03.  Changes in the fair value of plan assets   
  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 29.67  30.36  
  Expected return on plan assets 2.07  2.39  
  Contributions --  0.70  
  Benefits paid (1.03)  (3.78)  
  Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan assets Nil  Nil  
  Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 30.70  29.66  

04.  Fair value of plan assets   
  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 29.67  30.36  
   Actual return on plan assets 2.07  2.38  
  Contributions 0.00  0.70  
  Benefits paid (1.03)  (3.77)  
  Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 30.70  29.67  
  Funded status 0.93  15.86  

05.  Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized   
  Actuarial (gain) /Loss for the year – obligation (14.98)  38.23  
  Actuarial (gain)/Loss for the year – plan assets Nil  Nil  
  Total Loss/ (gain) for the year 14.98  (38.24)  
  Actuarial Loss/(Gain) recognized in the year 14.98  (38.24)  

06.  Amounts recognized in the balance sheet and Profit & Loss   
  Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 29.77  13.80  
  Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 30.70  29.67  
  Funded status 0.93  15.86  
  Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in balance sheet 0.93  15.83  

07.  Expenses charged in statement of Profit and Loss   
  Current Service cost 1.02  2.16  
  Interest Cost 1.00  3.74  
  Expected return on plan assets (2.07)  (2.38)  
  Net Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in the year 14.98  (38.24)  
  Expenses recognized in statement of Profit and Loss 14.93  (38.24)  
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< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

c. Sensitivity Analysis:                

d. The Defined benefit obligation shall mature as follows:

21.06: Segment Information :

Impact on defined benefit obligation  As at 31st March, 2021 
Increase/(Decrease) in liability 

As at 31st March, 2020 
Increase/(Decrease) in 

liability 
+1.00% Change in rate of discounting (0.16) (0.95) 
-1.00% Change in rate of discounting 0.19 1.06 
+1.00% Growth in rate of Salary 0.18 0.23 
-1.00% Growth in rate of Salary (0.16) (0.22) 
+1.00% Change in Attrition Rate (0.03) 0.33 
-1.00% Change in Attrition Rate 0.03 (0.36) 
Mortality Rate 10% up -- 0.01 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Within 1 year 1.37 1.62 
1-2 year 0.06 2.84 
2-3 year 0.06 1.31 
3-4 year 0.06 1.14 
4-5 year 1.55 0.98 
6-10 year 23.27 3.75 

1 Segment Revenue: 2020-21 2019-20 

a. Realty 755.32 328.11 
b. Textiles -- 5,013.91 

2 Segment Results :   
a. Realty 17.34 (473.58) 
b. Textiles -- (52.00) 

 Total 17.34 (525.58) 
 Less : Interest (159.29) (224.97) 
 Less : Exceptional items -- -- 
 Less : Un-allocable expenditure (4.06) (11.72) 
 Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items (146.01) (762.27) 
 Less : Extraordinary items   
 Profit/(Loss) before tax (146.01) (762.27) 
3 Carrying amount of Segment Assets   

a. Realty 7,577.79 7,481.59 
b. Textiles --- 54.64 

4 Carrying amount of Segment Liabilities   
a. Realty 7,219.19 7,612.16 
b. Textiles -- 52.44 

5 Cost incurred to acquire Segment Fixed Assets during the year   
a. Realty 38.91 4.57 
b. Textiles ---  

6 Depreciation and amortization expenses   
a. Realty 29.42 37.49 
b. Textiles -- -- 
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21.07: Disclosure in respect of related parties pursuant to Ind AS 24
List of Related Parties and nature of relationships:

 Wholly owned subsidiaries : 
     

ATL Textile Processors Limited 
Manoj Yarn Processors Limited  
 
Pee Dee Yarn Processors Limited 
(Applied for Name Strike off with ROC in March 
2021) 
 
Patodia Developers Pvt Ltd 
(Applied for Name Strike off with ROC in March 
2021) 
 
Srivarsha Realtors Pvt Ltd 
Newline Buildtech Pvt Ltd 
Prime Urban North America Inc. 
(w.e.f. 22.07.2020) 

With whom transactions have been entered in to : 
(i) Associates Prime Developers 

Prime New line AOP 
Prime Mall Developers 
Prime Hitech Textiles LLP 
Prime Urban Developers  
 (w.e.f. 11.10.2018) 
Prathan City Developers LLP 
(w.e.f. 02.04.2019) 

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel  
 

Mr. Purusottam Das Patodia 
   Chairman & Managing Director 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia 
  Vice Chairman & Managing Director 
Mr. Anuj Patodia 
  Director  
(Designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia changed from 
Managing Director to Non-executive non 
independent Director w.e.f.03.09.2020) 
Mr. T. Paul Sugumaran, 
  Authorized Signatory 
Mr. S. Udayananda 
    GM (Finance) and CFO 
Ms. Darshi Shah 
   Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

(iii) Enterprises having Common Key 
Management Personnel 

Pat Credit Limited 
Anjana Syntex Co. Limited 
Patodia Overseas Exports LLP 

(iv) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Indiradevi Patodia 
 Wife of Mr. Purusottam Das Patodia 
Mrs. Nandita Patodia 
  Wife of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia 
Mrs. Meenal Patodia 
  Wife of Mr. Anuj  Patodia   
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< in LacsTransactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business : 

(figures in bracket represent previous year’s )

 
Nature of Transaction 

 

 
Subsidiary 
Companies 

 
Associates 

 

Key 
Managerial 

Personnel 

Enterprises 
/Relatives of 

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

 
 

Total 

Services received 
(Civil contracts) 

24.01 
(68.15)  

             24.01 
         (68.15) 

Interest Paid   12.52 
(4.90) 

9.10 
(11.84) 

21.61 
(16.74) 

Interest received   2.77 
(--) 

81.64 
(73.83) 

84.41 
(73.83) 

Sale of goods    -- 
(78.34) 

-- 
(78.34) 

Purchase of goods    -- 
(39.17) 

-- 
(39.17) 

Rent received 
 

- 0.27 
(0.36) 

-- --           0.27 
(0.36) 

Share of Profit/(Loss) from 
firms:-  

a. Prime Developers  
 
 

b. Prime Newline AOP 
 
 

c. Prime Mall Developers 
 
 

d. Prime Urban Developers   
 

e. Prathan City Developers 
LLP 

  
 

(3.34) 
(4.88) 

 
136.85 
(59.95) 

 
(2.23) 

(3.28) 
 
 

   31.94 
 (68.32) 

 
(55.38) 
(25.31) 

   
 

(3.34) 
(4.88) 

 
136.85 
(59.95) 

 
(2.23) 
(3.28) 

 
      
        31.94 

(68.32) 
 

(55.38) 
(25.31) 

Remuneration Paid 
 

a. Mr. Purusottamdas 
Patodia 

b. Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Patodia 

c. Mr. Anuj Patodia 
 
 

d. Mr. S. Udayananda 
 
 

e. Darshi Shah 
 

 
 

Total 

- 
 

 
 

    
 

13.34 
(14.80) 

1.34 
(14.08) 

0.56 
(14.76) 

 
13.42 

(13.42) 
 

12.12 
(6.36) 

 
40.78 

(63.42)  

1.79 
(1.79) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.79 
(1.79) 

1.79 
(1.79) 

         13.34 
(14.80) 

1.34 
(14.08) 

0.56 
(14.76) 

 
13.42 

(13.42) 
 

12.12 
(6.36) 

 
42.57 

 (65.21)  

Balance as on 31.3.2021
Amount Payable:       
ATL Textile Processors Ltd. 512.63 

(512.63) 
   512.63 

(512.63) 
Peedee Yarn Processors Ltd -- 

(2.51) 
   -- 

(2.51) 
Prime Mall Developers  1,269.73 

(1,272.99) 
  1,269.73 

(1,272.99) 
Srivarsha Realtors Pvt Ltd -- 

(2.30) 
   -- 

(2.30) 
Prime Newline AOP  215.29 

(391.60) 
  215.29 

(391.60) 
Newline Buildtech Pvt Ltd 3,601.33 

(3,601.25) 
   3.601.33 

(3,601.25) 
Amount Receivable:      
Manoj Yarn Processors Ltd. 6.32 

(9.20) 
   6.32 

 (9.20) 
Prime Urban Developers  459.37 

(287.77) 
  459.37 

(287.77) 
Prathan City Developers LLP  401.25 

(318.69) 
  401.25 

(318.69) 
Prime Developers  124.84 

(131.87) 
  124.84 

(131.87) 
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21.08: Details of Lease arrangements :
 a. The Company has entered into finance lease arrangements for vehicles and future minimum lease payments and 

minimum lease payments are as follows :

 Figures in bracket are of previous year

 b. The Company has taken premise under cancellable operating lease. These lease agreement is normally renewed on 
expiry. The rental expenditure is accounted for in statement of Profit and Loss of the Company in accordance with 
Ind AS 17 on lease transactions. 

21.09: Earnings Per Share :                                                               

21.10: Income tax/DT reconciliation note:
 Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability):
 Timing difference comprises of :                                                   

 As a matter of the commercial prudence, deferred tax asset due to timing difference is not considered in the accounts.
 
 Deferred Tax Assets /(Liability) 

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

Due Total Minimum Lease 
Payments Outstanding 

Future Interests on 
Outstanding 

Present value of Minimum 
Lease Payments 

1. Within one year 21.45 
(24.84)  

5.39 
(4.56) 

16.06 
(20.28)  

2. Between one year   to 
 five years 

66.95 
(47.16) 

8.93 
 (8.22) 

58.02 
 (38.94) 

3.  More than five years  -- 
(5.22) 

-- 
(0.09) 

-- 
(5.13) 

Total 88.40 
(77.22) 

14.32 
(12.87) 

74.08 
(64.35)  

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020 
a. Profit/(Loss) after tax excluding exceptional items (148.31) (759.50) 
b. Less : Exceptional items -- -- 
c. Profit/(Loss) after tax including exceptional items (148.31) (759.50) 
d. Number of Equity shares outstanding  266,43,600 266,43,600 
e. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) :   
 - EPS excluding exceptional items (a/d) (0.56) (2.85) 
 - EPS including exceptional items  (c/d) (0.56) (2.85) 
f. Face value per share – in Rs. 2 per share 2 per share 

Deferred Tax Asset 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 
1. Carry forward Unabsorbed  depreciation/Business Loss  165.19 235.53 
2. Depreciation -- 0.31 

Total 165.19 235.84 
Deferred Tax Liability   
1. Depreciation 2.25 -- 
             Total  -- 
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 162.93 235.84 

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 01.04.2019 
Opening Balance 14.58 14.58 14.57 
Recognized in Profit and Loss -- -- -- 
MAT Credit entitlement -- -- 0.01 
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 14.58 14.58 14.58 
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21.11: Capital Management Note: 
 Risk Management Note:
  The Company’s aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to 

optimize returns to shareholders.

  The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements 
in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk 
and manages the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends 
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

  The Company policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain 
investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The company 
will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

  The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintain a stable capital structure with the 
focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor and customer confidence and to ensure future developments of the 
business. The company is focused on maintaining a strong equity base to ensure independence, security as well as 
finance flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. 

  The capital structure as at balance sheet date was as follows :

21.12.  Disclosure with regard to liquidity risk showing details of contractual cash outflow, Interest rate sensitivity, fair 
value matrix as per Ind AS 

  The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main 
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets 
include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

  The Company is hardly much exposed to market risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk 
management is carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors under 
the broad parameters;

  i) Market Risk   
  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may   fluctuate due to change in 

market price. The value of financial instruments may change as result of change in interest rates and other market 
changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial 
instruments including payable, deposits, loans & borrowings. The Company management evaluates and exercise 
control over process of market risk management. The Board recommends risk management objective and policies 
which includes management of cash resources, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits 
and policies The Company assumes that the sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed 
changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021 
and 31 March 2020.

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company

 
566.77 713.99 

As a percentage of total capital 100% 100% 
Long-term borrowings  570.70 548.25 
Total borrowings 570.70 548.25 
As a percentage of total capital  100.69% 76.79% 
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 1,137.54 1,262.24 

< in Lacs
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 ii) Interest rate risk   
  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with interest rates.

  The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of loans and borrowings. In order to optimize the 
Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense, the Company performs a comprehensive 
corporate interest rate risk by using different type of economic product of floating rate of borrowings in its total portfolio.

   Interest rate sensitivity
 
  In view of any inadequate expose to disruptive borrowings, there is hardly any possible change in interest rates on that 

portion of borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the companies profit before tax is hardly affected through 
the impact on interest rate borrowings:

 iii) Credit Risk 
  Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Trade receivables 

are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always 
been managed by the company through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the 
company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Accordingly in terms of Ind AS 109, the company does 
not foresee any expected credit loss.

 
  Credit Risk Management : 
  Financial instruments and cash deposits 
  The amortized cost and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at balance sheet date is as follows:

  The company has not disclosed the fair value of inventories, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade 
payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.  

Particulars 
  

Note As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Amortized 

cost 
FVTOC

I 
FVTP

L 
Amortized 

cost 
FVTOCI FVTP

L 
Financial assets        
Investments in Subsidiaries and 
associates 

4(a)(i) 4,699.42 -- -- 4,692.19 -- -- 

Other Investments 4(a)(ii) 5.00 -- -- 5.00 -- -- 
Investments 4(c) 208.17 -- -- 131.87 -- -- 
Inventories 5 1,060.99 -- -- 1,647.05 -- -- 
Trade receivables 4(d) -- -- -- 8.66 -- -- 
Cash and cash equivalents 4(e,f) 64.19 -- -- 25.40 -- -- 
Loans to Corporates 4(g) -- -- -- 150.00 -- -- 
Loans to Firms/LLP in which 
Company is a Partner 

4(h) 842.34 -- -- 710.49 -- -- 

Total  6,880.11 -- -- 7,370.66 -- -- 
Financial liabilities        
Borrowings 10(a) 1,138.55 -- -- 1,522.75 -- -- 
Trade payables 10(b) 3, 834.44 -- -- 4,073.48 -- -- 
Other Financial Liabilities 9(b) 1,387.15 -- -- 1,367.54   
Total  6,357.14 -- -- 6,963.77 -- -- 

< in Lacs
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  The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks. The Company has 
investment with a Mutual Fund which has a good track record and reputation and hence there is hardly any risk to be 
reported. The Company assumes that the sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed 
changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021 
and 31 March 2020.

  Trade receivables and other financial assets 
  Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Other financial assets 

are security deposits. Credit risk has been managed by the Company through continuously monitoring the                   
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account 
of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company does not foresee any expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss 
or gain. The company uses a provision matrix and forward looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over 
the expected life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. There are 
no significant credit risk pertaining to financial assets.

 iv) Liquidity risk

  Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an 
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the             
underlying businesses, company’s finance team maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under   
committed credit lines.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
To the Members of Prime Urban Development India Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion:
1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Prime Urban Development India Ltd (the “Company”), and its 

subsidiaries and associates (collectively referred to as the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),the consolidated cash flow statement and, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the Statement of consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Financial 
Statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2021 give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2021, and loss, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters:
4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

 We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 

to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity 
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Consolidated) specified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7.  The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements:
8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

 Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
are also:

 (i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 (ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 (iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

 (iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 (v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that 
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter
13. We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries and associates included in the Consolidated year to date results, whose financial 

statements reflect total assets of Rs. 4148.07 lakhs as at 31st March 2021 and the total revenue of Rs. 1303.97 lakhs and net profit of Rs 82.20 
lakhs. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by the other auditors, whose reports have been furnished 
to us, except for Prime Urban North America Inc, a Subsidiary Company, which has not been audited whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of Rs. 475.04 Lakhs as at 31st March 2021 and the total revenue of Rs. 663.46 lakhs and net profit of Rs. 24.36 lakhs which is included 
in the above figures., certified by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of sub-section (3) Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, is 
based solely on the reports of the auditors and the certificate from the Subsidiary Company’s Management.

14. The above figures also include the figures from the financial statements of Pee Dee Yarn Processors Limited and Patodia Developers Private 
Limited, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. NIL Lakhs and Rs. NIL Lakhs March 2021 and the total revenue of Rs. NIL Lakhs 
and Rs. NIL Lakhs and net loss of Rs. 2.75 Lakhs and net profit of Rs. 0.58 lakhs respectively, which were inoperative and has applied to the 
Registrar of Companies for Striking off their names from the register on 30.03.2021 under section 248(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

15. Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below, are not modified 
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate/consolidated 

financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries and associates, we report to the extent applicable that:
 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been 

kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
 (c)  The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of 

preparation of consolidated financial statements.
 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 

of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and taken on record by the Board of 

Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, none 
of the Directors of the Group companies covered under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a Director 
of that company in terms of sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries covered 
under the Act and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A” and

 (g) In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the 
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration for the year ended on March 31, 2021 has paid/provided by the Company to its 
directors in accordance with the provisions of the section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the  explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements/consolidated financial statements as also the other 
financial information of the subsidiaries and associates:

  i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group.
  ii The Group has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, requiring provision under applicable laws or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, and
  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For L.U.Krishnan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN – 001527S

P.K.Manoj
Place: Chennai  Partner
Date:  22.06.2021 Membership No.207550

UDIN: 21207550AAAAEP3777
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Prime Urban Development India Ltd (“the Company”) as at 
31st March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended and as at on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference 
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that,
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March 2021, based on the internal control 
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For L.U.Krishnan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN – 001527S

P.K.Manoj
Place: Chennai Partner
Date:  22.06.2021 Membership No.207550

UDIN: 21207550AAAAEP3777
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET    < in Lacs
  Particulars Note As at As at  

   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
I. ASSETS   
 (1) Non-current assets   
 a) Property, plant and equipment 3  515.33  668.63 
    515.33  668.63 
 b) Financial Assets   
  (i) Other investments 4(a) 5.00  5.00 
  (ii) Other financial assets 4(b) 29.86  33.00 
     (iii) Long-term loans and advances 4(c ) 5.50  5.50 
 c) Deferred tax asset  16.96  15.76 
                                                                                Total Non-current assets 57.33  59.26 
    572.65  727.89 
 (2)   Current assets   
 a) Inventories 5  1,408.60 2,351.34 
 b) Financial Assets   
  (i) Current investments 4(d) 83.33  -  
  (i) Trade receivables 4(e)  317.93  58.47 
  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4(f) 100.70  65.70 
  (iii) Bank balances other than above 4(g) 7.86  12.29 
  (iv) Loans to corporates 4(h)  -   150.00 
  (v) Loans to others 4(i) 275.90  231.62 
 Current Tax Assets (Net) 6  223.96  234.17 
 Other current assets 7  648.16  434.23 
                                                   Total Current Assets   3,066.44  3,537.82 
                                                    Total Assets   3,639.09  4,265.71 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
EQUITY    
 a) Equity Share Capital 8(a) 532.87  532.87 
 b) Other Equity 8(b) (405.91)  (229.49) 
                                                                         Total Equity  126.96  303.38 
LIABILITIES    
1  Non-current liabilities    
  a)  Financial Liabilities    
  Borrowings 9(a) 58.07  33.11 

    58.07  33.11 
2 Current liabilities   
 a) Financial Liabilities
  Borrowings 10(a)  1,206.21 2,211.02 
  Total outstanding dues to Micro enterprises and small enterprises  - - 
  Total outstanding dues to creditors othan than micro enterprises and
  small enterprises 10(b) 394.42   78.86 
  Other financial liabilities 10(c)  1,452.94  1,454.36 
 b) Other current liabilities 11(b) 400.43  184.83 
 c) Provisions 11(a) 0.06  0.15 
     3,454.06  3,929.22 
                                                                                       Total    3,639.09  4,265.71 

As per our report of even date attached               For and on behalf of the Board  
For L.U.Krishnan & Co    Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia 
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director  
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088)  
P.K.Manoj                                                  
Partner  M.No.207550                                 
UDIN: 21207550AAAAEP3777    
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda  Darshi Shah 
Date   : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) & CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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As per our report of even date attached               For and on behalf of the Board  
For L.U.Krishnan & Co    Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director  
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088) 
P.K.Manoj                                                  
Partner   M.No.207550                                 
UDIN: 21207550AAAAEP3777    
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda  Darshi Shah 
Date  : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) & CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS
   < in Lacs

  Particulars Note Year Ended   Year Ended  
   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Income    
1 Revenue from operations 12   2,059.30  5,236.81 
2 Other income 13  272.11  109.34 
3 Total Revenue (1 + 2)   2,331.41  5,346.15 
     
4 Expenses     
 (a) Cost of Land sold 14  430.20  215.53 
 (b) Purchase of Stock-in-trade 15  661.01   5,229.16 
 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in-trade 16  666.46   (555.87) 
 (d) Employee benefits expenses 17  378.71   223.54 
 (e) Finance cost 18  176.69   324.46 
 (f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses  32.60   40.62 
 (g) Other expenses 19  156.05   519.23 
              Total expenses (a to g)  2,501.72    5,996.67 
5 Profit/( Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  (170.31)   (650.52) 
6 Exceptional items 20  -      -  
7 Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items and tax  (170.31)   (650.52) 
8 Extraordinary items   -     -   
9 Profit/(Loss) before tax   (170.31)  (650.52) 
 Profit/(Loss) of the Group  (170.31)   (650.52) 
10 Tax expense :    
 (a)   Current Tax   (0.08)   (0.05) 
 (b)  MAT   (0.03)   (0.02) 
 (c)  Tax for Prior year's   (2.30)   2.77 
 (d)  Deferred Tax   1.24   (0.41) 
11 Profit/( Loss) for the year  (171.48)   (648.23) 
      Other Comprehensive Income      
12 Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss    
      Impact on remeasurement of post employment obligation    1.09  27.52 
      Impact on foreign exchange rates on Investments  (0.22)  -   
      Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the Year  (170.61)  (620.71) 
13 Earnings Per Equity Share :    
  Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share before exceptional/extraordinary items (0.64)   (2.43) 
  Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share after exceptional/extraordinay items (0.64)   (2.43) 
    (Face value of Rs. 2 each)   
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As per our report of even date attached              For and on behalf of the Board  
For L.U.Krishnan & Co    Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia   
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director  
FRN 001527S (Din No: 00026455) (Din 00032088)   

P.K.Manoj                                                  
Partner   M.No.207550                                     UDIN: 21207550AAAAEP3777
Place : Mumbai S.Udayananda Darshi Shah 
Date  : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) & CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS < in Lacs
  Particulars   Year Ended  Year Ended   

   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities    
     Net Profit/(Loss) before tax, exceptional items and after other comprehensive income   (169.22) (623.00)
   Adjustments for:    
  Depreciation and amortisation expenses   32.60 40.62
  Provision for dimunision in value of Investment in Subsidiary companies -  (138.82)
  Unrealised Profit on Intra group transactions   (5.81) (14.59)
  Bad debts written off  -  29.13
  (Profit)/ Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  -  0.88
  Interest income  (25.10) (73.73)
  Dividend Income   (1.01) (4.04)
  Finance Cost   176.67 316.06
  Exchange difference recognized in Investment in foreign currency (0.22) - 
 Operating profit before working capital changes   7.91 (467.49)
   Changes in Working Capital:    
  Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables   315.56 (63.62)
  Increase / (Decrease) in provisions   (0.09) (19.96)
  Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities   (1.40) 39.26
  Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities   215.59 131.75
  (Increase) / Decrease in margin money and unpaid dividend 4.43 8.27
  (Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables   (259.46) 1,987.04
  (Increase) / Decrease in inventories   942.74 (449.49)
  (Increase) / Decrease in short term loans and advances   105.72 (231.61)
  (Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets   3.13 (15.83)
  (Increase) / Decrease in other current assets   (213.93) 206.90
  (Increase) / Decrease in long term loans and advances   - 2.00
Cash Generated from Operations   1,120.20 1,127.22
  Taxes paid (net of refunds)   7.83 (7.55)
Net cash generated from operations before exceptional items  1,128.03 1,119.67
  Exceptional items    -   
Net cash generated from operating activities   1,128.03 1,119.67
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:   
  Purchase of property, plant and equopment/intangible assets (38.91) (9.30)
  Sale of tangible/intangible  assets   159.62 61.95
  Interest received    25.10 73.73
  Dividend received   1.01 4.04
  Sale/ (Purchase) of non-current investments  (83.33) - 
Net cash from investing activities    63.49 130.42
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities    
  Finance Cost  (176.67)  (316.07)
  Increase / (Decrease) in short term borrowings  (1,004.81)  (937.39)
  Proceeds from Long Term borrowings   24.96  (27.72)

Net cash used in Financing Activities   (1,156.52)  (1,281.18)
Net increase in cash and Cash equivalants   35.00 (31.09)
Cash and Cash Equivalants  at the beginning of the year   65.70 96.79
Cash and Cash equivalants at the end of the year    100.70 65.70
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance sheet   
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet   108.56 77.99
Less : Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash equivalents   
          Unpaid dividend   7.86 7.86
          Other Deposits   - 4.43
Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the year end   100.70 65.70



PRIME URBAN DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED

66

Note 1 & 2
Significant Accounting Policies (Consolidated financial statements)
1. a. Group overview
 The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Prime Urban Development India Limited, Parent 

Company and its subsidiary and its associates (hereinafter referred as “the Group”)

 The Prime Urban Development India Limited (“the Company”) is public limited company incorporated and domiciled in 
India and has registered office at No.83, Site No.4, 3rd floor, Near Petrol Bunk, Avinashi Road, Gandhinagar Post, Tirupur 
Tamil Nadu. It is incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock 
Exchange.

 The Company is having business of Realty and textile.

 b. Group Structure:

2 Significant Accounting Policies:
2.01: Basis of Accounting:
 (i) Compliance with Ind AS :
  The Consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 

referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 216 and other relevant provisions of the Act.  

 (ii) Historical Cost Convention :
  The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except 

for the following :
  1. certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
  2. assets held for sale – measured at lower of cost to sell;
  3. 3. defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value;

 (iii) Classification of assets and liabilities :
  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 

(twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.
 (iv) Rounding of amounts:
  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 

requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

2.02:  Use of estimates:
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management 

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of 
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statement and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to the estimates is recognized prospectively.

 (i) Wholly owned subsidiaries  
     

ATL Textile Processors Limited  100%  

 Nature of holding Name of the Company/Firm/AOP Percentage 
of Holding 

Manoj Yarn Processors Limited  100%  
Pee Dee Yarn Processors Limited  
(applied for name strike off with ROC in March 2021)  

 
100%  

Patodia Developers Pvt Ltd  
(applied for name strike off with ROC in  March 2021) 

100%  
 

Srivarsha Realtors Pvt Lt d 60%  
Newline Buildtech Pvt Ltd  100%  
Prime Urban North America Inc.  
 (with effect from 22 .07.2020) 

99%  

  
(ii) Associates in which the Company  

has control  
Prime Developers  50%  
Prime New line AOP  75%  
Prime Mall Developers  50%  

 Prime Urban Developers  
(w.e.f. 11.10.2018)  

67%  

Prathan City Developers  
(w.e.f 02.04.2019)  

67%  
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2.03:  Consolidation procedure:

 The Company consolidates all entities which are controlled by it. The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates as at 31 March 2021.

 The Company establishes control when; it has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect the entity’s returns by using its power over relevant activities of the 
entity.

 The results of subsidiaries acquired, or sold, during the year are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition and up 
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

 The Financial statements are prepared by combining like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash 
flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each 
subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

 Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between 
entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as 
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition 
in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the 
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

 Financial statements of both parent company, its subsidiaries, and the firm in which the parent company has substantial 
interest, have been drawn up to 31st March 2021, the reporting date.

 The exchange differences arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiary with functional currency 
other than the Indian rupees is recognised in other comprehensive income and is presented within equity.

02.04: Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

 A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.

 The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

2.05: Other Significant Accounting Policies:

 These are set out under Significant Accounting Policies for financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies.

As per our report of even date annexed               For and on behalf of the Board  
For  L.U.Krishnan & Co Manoj Kumar Patodia  Purusottamdas Patodia  
Chartered Accountants                      Vice Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director 
FRN 001527S                                                       (DIN No.: 00026455)                                   (DIN No.: 00032088) 

P.K.Manoj                                                    
Partner   M.No.207550                                       
UDIN 21207550AAAAEP3777
    
Place  : Mumbai S.Udayananda  Darshi Shah 
Date   : 22.06.2021 GM(Finance) and CFO Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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                                       Particulars     As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
    No of shares  No of shares 

Note 4  :  Financial Assets   
4(a) Non-current Investments - Un-quoted 
 (1) Equity shares fully paid up
  Other entities - Non-Trade 
  Tirupur Infrastructure Development Company Limited    500 5.00 500 5.00
  (500 shares of Rs.1000 each) 

  Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments      5.00   5.00
                                                              Sub-total      5.00   5.00

< in LacsNotes to the Financial Statements (consolidated)

< in Lacs
             Particulars Note  As at 31st As at 31st 
               March, 2021 March, 2020
4(b) Other financial assets
  Security Deposits    29.86 33.00
      29.86  33.00
4(c) Loans
  Other loans and advances   5.50 5.50
     5.50 5.50
4(d) Current Investments (Unquoted)
  (i) Investments in Birla Mutual funds - Cash Plus fund   83.33 -
     83.33 -
4(e) Trade receivables (current)
  Considered good - Unsecured   317.94 58.47
  Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk  - -
     317.94 58.47
4(f) Cash and cash equivalents
  (i) Cash on hand   1.20 2.27
  (ii) Balances with bank in current accounts   99.26 63.01
  (iii) Fixed deposits with bank   0.24 0.42
     100.70 65.70
4(g) Bank Balances other than above
  In Deposits under lien   -
  Unpaid Dividend accounts    7.86 7.86
  Other Deposits   - 4.43 
     7.86 12.29 
  *  Shall transfer when due to IEPF, not yet due for transfer
4(h) Short-term loans and advances
 (i) Loans 
  Loans receivable from Corporate - Considered good, Unsecured    - 150.00
      - 150.00
 (ii) Loans receivable from Firms - Considered good, Unsecured  275.90 231.62
     275.90 231.62
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Notes to the Financial Statements (consolidated) < in Lacs
             Particulars Note  As at 31st As at 31st 
               March, 2021 March, 2020 
Note 5  Inventories 
 Valued at Cost or Net realisable value whichever is lower
 (i)  Realty Inventory ( Villa and development rights)  1,060.99   1,647.05 
 (ii)  Realty Inventory other entities  347.61   704.29 
  Sub-total (b)  1,408.60   2,351.34 
  No inventory is written off during the year
Note 6  Current Tax Assets (Net)    
 Advance income tax  224.05  245.38 
 Less: Provisions  0.09  11.21 
 Current Tax Assets (Net)  223.96  234.17 
Note 7  Other current assets
 (i) Interest accrued and other receivables  47.03 53.50 
 (ii) Rent and other refundable Deposits  3.30 3.30 
 (iii) Prepayments   2.67 3.09 
 (iv) Balance with statutory authorities  38.15 47.62 
 (v) Advances to suppliers  336.08 17.74 
 (vi) Advances to employees  0.11 0.16 
 (vii)  Contract execution pre-operative expenses  220.82 308.82 
    648.16 434.23 

Note (a) : Reconciliation of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

             Particulars  As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
        Number       Rs. in Lacs    Number        Rs. in Lacs

Note 8  Equity Share Capital and Other Equity
Note 8 (a) : Equity Share Capital
 Authorised 
  Equity Shares of Rs.2 each    62,500,000   1,250.00   62,500,000   1,250.00 
  Preference Shares of Rs.100 each    750,000   750.00   750,000   750.00 
 Issued    
  Equity Shares of Rs.2 each   26,644,300  532.89   26,644,300    532.89 
 Subscribed and paid up:    
  Equity Shares of Rs.2 each   26,643,600  532.87   26,643,600   532.87 
      26,643,600   532.87   26,643,600   532.87 

             Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020  
              Number       Amount in Lacs      Number         Amount in Lacs

 Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,66,43,600 532.87 2,66,43,600 532.87
 Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
 Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,66,43,600 532.87 2,66,43,600 532.87

Note (b) - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity Shares in the Company:

 Name of the Shareholder Number Percentage of Number Percentage of
    shares held Holding shares held Holding
 Anjana Syntex Company Limited 56,60,655 21.25% 56,60,655 21.25%
 Pat Credit Limited 60,09,675 22.56% 60,09,675 22.56%
 Meenal Patodia 17,24,915 6.47% 17,24,915 6.47%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (consolidated)

< in Lacs
             Particulars Note  As at 31st As at 31st  
               March, 2021 March, 2020 
Note 8  
Note 8(b) : Other Equity
  i    Capital Reserve    9.31   9.31 
  ii   Securities Premium     117.00   117.00 
  iii  General Reserve    1,950.71   1,950.71 
  iv  Retained Earnings    (2,482.93)   (2,306.51) 
      (405.91)   (229.49) 
 i. Capital Reserve
  Beginning of the Year    9.31  148.13 
  Less: Diminution  in Value of Investment in subsidiary Companies   -    (138.82)  
  End of the Year    9.31   9.31 

 1. Company has invested in Newline Buildtech Pvt Ltd by acquisition of 100% of equity 
shares of Newline Buildtech Pvt Ltd during FY 2017-18 at Rs. 4,103.48 lacs. The 
difference of Rs. 147.73 lacs , Parent's share in equity from cost of Investment is 
credited in Capital Reserve.

 2. Company has invested in Srivarhsa Realtors Pvt Ltd by acquisition of 100% of equity 
shares of Newline Buildtech Pvt Ltd during FY 2017-18 at Rs. 0.60 lacs. The difference 
of Rs. 0.40 lacs Parent's share in equity from cost of Investment is credited in Capital 
Reserve.

 ii. Securities Premium: 
  Beginning of the Year    117.00   117.00 
  End of the Year    117.00   117.00 

  During the year ended 31st March 2015, the Company has issued 39,00,000 
equity shares face value of Rs. 2/- and share premium of Rs. 3/- each. The said 
premium is credited to Securities Premium account

 iii. General Reserve:
  Beginning of the Year   1,950.71   1,950.71 
  End of the Year    1,950.71   1,950.71 

 iv. Retained Earnings:
  Beginning of the Year   (2,306.51)   (1,671.21) 
  End of the Year    (170.61)   (620.71) 
     (2,477.12)  (2,291.92) 
  Less: Unrealised Gain on Intra - group transfers   (5.88)  (14.59) 
     (2,483.00)  (2,306.51) 
  Add: Minority Interest   0.07  -  
  End of the Year   (2,482.93)  (2,306.51) 
    Total (405.91)  (229.49) 

Note (c) -   Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares:- The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs.2 
per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Note (d) -  There was no issue of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to Contract (s) without payment being received in cash 
or buyback or bonus shares of interim Dividend

Note (e) Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors, if any is subject to approval of the Shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting, except in case of interim Dividend.

Note (f):  In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held  by the shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (consolidated)
< in Lacs

             Particulars   As at 31st As at 31st  
               March, 2021 March, 2020 
Note 9
Non-Current Liabilities
 Financial Liabilities
9(a)  Borrowings
 Secured
  Deferred payment liabilities
  Hire - purchase Loan    58.07  33.11
    Total  58.07  33.11
  Nature of Security :
  1. Vehicle purchase loan liabilities are secured against vehicles acquired
      Terms of Repayment :
   Hire purchase loan liabilities and terms to pay
   last instalment due is on 01.09.2025 and rate of
   interest is 8.71% per annum.
Note 10
Current Liabilities
10(a) Current Borrowings 
 Secured   -  - 

 Un-secured
  From Corporates    992.61 1,912.28
  From a Director    146.60 164.75
  From LLP   67.00 134.00
      Sub-total (a)  1,206.21 2,211.03
  Nature of Security :
  Unsecured Loan from Corporates, having interest rates ranging between 9% to 

12% p.a. payable within one year and loan from a director has interest at the rate 
of 9% pa and tenure of repayment is 12 months from the date of borrowing.

10(b)  Trade payable
  Due to suppliers and service providers    394.42  78.86
  (Also refer Note No. 2.02 regarding dues to MSM others)
        Sub-total (b)  394.42  78.86
10(c)  Other Financial Liabilities  
 (i) Current maturities of finance lease obligations    16.08  30.00 
 (ii) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings    0.52  47.91 
 (iii) Unclaimed dividends *    7.85  7.86 
 (iv) Due to Directors    -  2.65 
 (v) Other payables  
  Security Deposit and Retention money    0.15  0.15 
  Others    69.06  6.49 
  (vi) Construction contract advance received    1,359.28  1,359.28 
   Sub-total (c)   1,452.94  1,454.34 
  * Shall transfer when due to IEPF, not yet due for transfer
11(a)  Provisions 
  Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratuity    0.06  0.15 
   Sub-total (d)   0.06  0.15 
11(b)  Other current Liabilities 
  Advance from customers   276.68  87.80 
  Statutory dues payable   12.31   12.11 
  Unamortised    93.01  57.87 
  Non recognisition of customer credit    18.43  27.06 
   Sub-total (e)  400.43   184.84 
   Total   3,454.06 3,929.22 
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< in Lacs
  Particulars   Year Ended  Year Ended   

   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Note 12 
Revenue from operations :
Textile Segment
  Textiles - Sale of Traded Goods - Cotton Yarn    -   4,938.03 
     -   4,938.03 
Realty Segment
 Sale of Land held as stock in trade  722.20  -  
    Sale of  Land    33.13   -  
   Revenue from operations of Entities   1,303.97   222.89 
     2,059.30   222.89 
Other Operating Revenue :
 Export Incentive  -  75.89 
    -  75.89 
     2,059.29   5,236.81 
Note 13 
Other Income 
  Interest income   25.10  73.73 
    Commission receipts    5.16  -  
    Dividend income   1.01  4.04 
 Liabilities no longer payable written back  200.67   26.46 
 Profit on sale of Investments  -   4.75 
 Miscellaneous Income   40.17  0.36 
     272.11  109.34 
Note 14
Cost of Land  
 Cost of Land held as Stock in Trade   275.48  107.19 
 Cost of Land  154.72  60.20 
 Road laying expenses  -  48.14 
     430.20  215.53 
Note 15   
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade   
 Purchase of Traded goods - Cotton Yarn   -     4,673.11 
 Cost of Purchases Realty ( Land, Villas and development rights)   65.85   357.22 
 Cost of revenue of Entities   595.16   198.83 
     661.01   5,229.16 
Note 16   
Changes in Stock of Finished Goods and Stock - in- trade   
Opening  balance   
 Stock in Trade   -     52.14 
 Realty Inventory   1,853.72   1,245.71 
            (A)                      1,853.72   1,297.85 
Less :   
Closing balance   
 Realty Inventory   1,187.26   1,853.72 
       (B)                      1,187.26   1,853.72 
  Net Value    (A) -(B)                         666.46   (555.87)
Note 17   
Employee benefits expense   
 Salaries and Wages   371.42   212.94 
 Contribution to provident and other funds    0.38   4.00 
 Staff welfare expenses   6.91   6.60 
   Total  378.71   223.54 
Note 18   
Finance costs   
  Interest on Borrowings    176.67   316.07 
  Other finance cost   0.02   8.39 
   Total  176.69   324.46 

Notes to the Financial Statements (consolidated)
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< in Lacs
  Particulars   Year Ended  Year Ended   

   31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Note 19
Other Expenses 
 Insurance   3.24   9.72 
 Rates and taxes    7.65   6.85 
 Sitting Fees   1.95   1.85 
 Power and Fuel Consumed   6.35   18.38 
   Rent   28.54   24.38 
   Repairs - Building   0.40   0.61 
   Repairs - Others   2.14   9.23 
   Communication Expenses    3.16   12.61 
   Travelling and Conveyance   16.46   48.97 
   Sales Commission    5.46   54.03 
   Freight and Forwarding    0.04   129.95 
   Selling expenses   0.38   0.21 
   Donation    2.62   0.08 
   Legal and Professional fees   30.47   16.03 
   Auditors Remuneration    2.70   2.40 
   Bad and doubtful debts written off   -     29.13 
   Advances no longer recoverable written off   -     12.72 
   Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment   -     0.88 
   Bank Charges   0.49   24.69 
   Investment witten off   4.00  
   Miscellaneous expenses    40.00   116.51 
     156.05   519.23 
 
Note 20
Exceptional Expenses 
     -    -   
     -    -   

Notes to the Financial Statements (consolidated)
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Note No. 21:  Additional information to financial statements for consolidated financial statements:

21.01: Members of the Group: 
 Prime Urban Development India Limited’s subsidiaries and associates in which the company has control are listed below:

21.03: Contingent liabilities and commitments  

 Note 1: Applied for Name Strike Off with ROC in March 2021.

21.02: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard as notified 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting standards), 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules 
2016 prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 The consolidated financial statements of the group are prepared and presented on accrual basis and under the historical cost 
convention except the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS.

 • Defined benefit and other long term employee benefits.

< in Lacs

Sl.No Particulars Nature Proportion of 
ownership interest 

Date of 
Incorporation/ 

Acquisition 
Subsidiaries 

1 ATL Textile Processors Limited Subsidiary 100% 22.03.1996 
2 Manoj Yarn Processors Limited Subsidiary 100% 08.02.1996 
3 Pee Dee Yarn Processors Limited –(Note 1) Subsidiary 100% 06.12.1995 
4 Patodia Developers Pvt Ltd  - (Note 1) Subsidiary 100% 15.02.2008 
5 Srivarsha Realtors Pvt Ltd Subsidiary 60% 20.9.2016 
6 Newline Buildtech Private Limited Subsidiary 100% 09.08.2017 
7 Prime Urban North America Subsidiary 99% 22.07.2020 

Associates in which the Company has control 
8 Prime Newline AOP AOP 75% 23.07.2008 
9 Prime Developers Partnership Firm 50% 15.07.2004 

10 Prime Urban Developers Partnership Firm 67% 11.10.2018 
11 Prime Mall Developers Partnership Firm 50% 23.05.2007 
12 Prathan City Developers LLP LLP 67% 02.04.2019  

 As at 31st March, 
2021 

As at 31st March, 
2020 

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)   
 Disputed Tax Demands (Including Interest up to the date of demand)   
 (i)Income Tax 

 (Tax deposits  Rs.242.42  lacs ; pr.yr.207.48 lacs) 
The Income Tax liability for AY 2009-10 for Rs.551.09 lacs is under 
appeal before the Honb’le Madras High Court and the High Court has 
given stay against the order of Income Tax Appellate Tribunal and 
collection of demand.    

743.09 743.09 
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21.05:General notes

 a.  In the opinion of the management, assets other than property, plant and equipment and non-current investments have a 
value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

 b. The accounts of certain Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Loans & Advances and Banks are however, subject to 
formal confirmations/reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. The management does not expect any material 
difference affecting the current period’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

21.06: Auditors Remuneration (excluding service tax/GST)

21.07: Employee Benefit Plans :

Defined contribution plans :
The company contributed to Gratuity and Provident Fund to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the 
Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll cost to fund benefits.

a. Defined Benefit plan :

 Gratuity: 
 In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“The 

Gratuity plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on 
retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment.  Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan 
are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date and the Company makes annual contribution to the gratuity 
fund administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India under the respective scheme.

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

21.04: Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
< in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March, 
2021 

As at 31st March, 
2020 

(i) Principal  amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 

NIL NIL 

(ii) Interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day 

NIL NIL 

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year   NIL NIL 
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 

of the accounting year 
NIL NIL 

(v) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid. 

NIL NIL 

Particulars 31.3.2021 31.3.2020  
Audit fees  2.23 2.08 
Other fees 0.47 0.32 

Total 2.70 2.40 

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020 
a. Provident Fund Contribution 0.61 0.65 
b. Gratuity -- 1.20 



PRIME URBAN DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED

78

b. The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

Notes:  i.  The entire Plan Assets are managed by LIC
          ii. The expected return on Plan Assets is as furnished by LIC
 iii. The estimate of future salary increase takes in to account inflation, likely increments, promotions and other 

relevant factors.

< in Lacs
01.  Assumptions 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

  Discount Rate  7.00%  7.50% 
  Salary Escalation  7.00%  7.00% 

02.  Changes in the present value of obligation   
  Present value of obligation as at beginning of year 13.80  49.92  
  Interest Cost 1.00  3.74  
     Current Service Cost 1.02  2.16  
  Benefits paid (1.03)  (3.77)  
  Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligations 14.98  (38.23)  
  Present value of obligations as at the end of year 29.77  13.80  

03.  Changes in the fair value of plan assets   
  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 29.67  30.36  
  Expected return on plan assets 2.07  2.39  
  Contributions --  0.70  
  Benefits paid (1.03)  (3.78)  
  Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan assets Nil  Nil  
  Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 30.70  29.66  

04.  Fair value of plan assets   
  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 29.67  30.36  
   Actual return on plan assets 2.07  2.38  
  Contributions 0.00  0.70  
  Benefits paid (1.03)  (3.77)  
  Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 30.70  29.67  
  Funded status 0.93  15.86  

05.  Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized   
  Actuarial (gain) /Loss for the year – obligation (14.98)  38.23  
  Actuarial (gain)/Loss for the year – plan assets Nil  Nil  
  Total Loss/ (gain) for the year 14.98  (38.24)  
  Actuarial Loss/(Gain) recognized in the year 14.98  (38.24)  

06.  Amounts recognized in the balance sheet and Profit & Loss   
  Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 29.77  13.80  
  Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 30.70  29.67  
  Funded status 0.93  15.86  
  Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in balance sheet 0.93  15.83  

07.  Expenses charged in statement of Profit and Loss   
  Current Service cost 1.02  2.16  
  Interest Cost 1.00  3.74  
  Expected return on plan assets (2.07)  (2.38)  
  Net Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in the year 14.98  (38.24)  
  Expenses recognized in statement of Profit and Loss  14.93  (38.24)  
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c. Sensitivity Analysis:                                                                                            

d. The Defined benefit obligation shall mature as follows:

21.08: Segment Information                                                      

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

Impact on defined benefit obligation As at 31st March, 2021 
Increase/(Decrease) in liability 

As at 31st March, 2020 
Increase/(Decrease) in liability 

+1.00% Change in rate of discounting (0.16) (0.95) 
-1.00% Change in rate of discounting 0.19 1.06 
+1.00% Growth in rate of Salary 0.18 0.23 
-1.00% Growth in rate of Salary (0.16) (0.22) 
+1.00% Change in Attrition Rate (0.03) 0.33 
-1.00% Change in Attrition Rate 0.03 (0.36) 
Mortality Rate 10% up -- 0.01 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Within 1 year 1.37 1.62 
1-2 year 0.06 2.84 
2-3 year 0.06 1.31 
3-4 year 0.06 1.14 
4-5 year 1.55 0.98 
6-10 year 23.27 3.75 

1 Segment Revenue: 2020-2021 2019-2020 
a. Realty 2,059.29 222.89 
b. Textiles -- 5,013.92 

2 Segment Results :   
a. Realty 10.44 (262.32) 
b. Textiles -- (52.00) 

 Total 10.44 (314.32) 
 Less : Interest (176.70) (324.47) 
 Less : Exceptional items – Reversal / (Provision) -- -- 
 Less : Un-allocable expenditure (4.05) (11.73) 
 Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items (170.31) (650.52) 
 Less : Extraordinary items -- -- 
 Profit/(Loss) before tax (170.31) (650.52) 
3 Carrying amount of Segment Assets   
a. Realty 3,639.09 4,211.07 
b. Textiles -- 54.64 

4 Carrying amount of Segment Liabilities   
a. Realty 3,512.13 3,909.89 
b. Textiles --- 52.44 

5 Cost incurred to acquire Segment Fixed Assets during the year   
a. Realty 38.91 9.30 
b. Textiles -- -- 

6 Depreciation and amortization expenses   
a. Realty 32.60 40.62 
b. Textiles -- -- 
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21.09:  Disclosure in respect of related parties pursuant to Ind AS 24:
     List of Related Parties and nature of relationships:

21.10: Transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business  

(Figures in bracket represent previous year’s)

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

With whom transactions have been entered into : 
(i) Key Managerial Personnel  

 
Mr. Purusottam Das Patodia 
  Chairman & Managing Director 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia 
 Vice Chairman & Managing Director 
Mr. Anuj Patodia 
  Director  
(Designation of Mr. Anuj Patodia changed from Managing Director 
to Non-executive non independent Director w.e.f.03.09.2020)  
Mr. T. Paul Sugumaran 
   Authorized Signatory  
Mr. S. Udayananda 
    GM (Finance) and CFO 
Ms. Darshi Shah 
   Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

(ii) Enterprises having Common 
Key Management Personnel 

Pat Credit Limited 
Anjana Syntex Co. Limited 
Prime Hitech Textiles LLP 
Patodia Overseas Exports LLP 

(iii) Relatives of Key Managerial 
Personnel 

Mrs. Indiradevi Patodia 
 Wife of Mr. Purusottam Das Patodia 
Mrs. Nandita Patodia 
 Wife of Mr. Manoj Kumar Patodia 
Mrs. Meenal Patodia 
 Wife of Mr. Anuj  Patodia 

 
Nature of Transaction 

 

 
Associates 

 

Key 
Managerial 

Personnel 

Enterprises 
/Relatives of Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 

 
 

Total 

Rent received  
 

 
0.27 

(0.36) 

- 
(Nil) 

 
(Nil) 

 
0.27 

(0.36)  
Interest paid 

 
15.88 

(17.63) 

 
12.52 
(4.90) 

 
9.10 

(11.84) 

 
37.49 

(34.37)  
Interest Received 

  
2.78 
(--) 

 
81.63 

(73.83) 

 
84.41 

(73.83) 
Sale of goods   -- 

(78.34) 
-- 

(78.34) 
Purchase of goods   -- 

(39.17) 
-- 

(39.17)  
Remuneration 
Paid 
 a. Mr. Purusottamdas 

Patodia 
b. Mr. Manoj Kumar 

Patodia 
c. Mr. Anuj Patodia 

 
  

  
d.  Mr. S. Udayananda 
 

  
 

  e. Ms. Darshi Shah 
(w.e.f. 1.9.2019)   Total 

     
 
 
 13.34 

 (14.80) 
1.34 

 (14.08) 
0.56  

(14.76) 
 

 
13.42 

(13.42) 
 
 

  12.12 
(6.36)   40.78 

 (73.40)  

 
1.79 

(1.79)

1.79
(1.79)

 

 
1.79 

(1.79) 
 13.34 

(14.80) 
1.34  

 (14.08) 
0.56  

 (14.76) 
 

 
13.42 

(13.42) 
  12.12 

(6.36)   42.57  
(73.40)            
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21.11: Details of Lease arrangements
 a. The Company has entered into finance lease arrangements for vehicles and Future minimum lease payments and 

minimum lease payments are as follows :

21.12:  Earnings Per Share

21.13:  Income tax/DT reconciliation note:
  Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)
 Timing difference comprises of :

Deferred Tax Assets /(Liability) 
As a matter of the commercial prudence, deferred tax asset due to timing difference is not provided in the accounts.

      (Figures in bracket are of previous year’s) 
b. The Company has taken premise under cancellable operating lease. These lease agreement is normally renewed on 

expiry. The rental expenditure is accounted for in statement of Profit and Loss of the Company in accordance with Ind 
AS 17 on lease transactions.

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

< in Lacs

21.14:  Capital Management Note:
 Capital Management Risk:
 The Company’s aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns 

to shareholders.

 The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its 
strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manages the capital structure in 
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Company policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors 
and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The company will take appropriate steps in order to 
maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

Due Total Minimum Lease 
Payments Outstanding.  

Future Interests on 
Outstanding  

Present value of Minimum 
Lease Payments  

1.Within one year 21.45 
(24.84)  

5.39 
(4.56) 

16.06 
(20.28)  

2.Between one year to five years
 

66.95 
(47.16) 

8.93 
 (8.22) 

58.02 
 (38.94) 

3.More than five years -- 
(5.22) 

-- 
(0.09) 

-- 
(5.13) 

Total 88.40 
(77.22) 

14.32 
(12.87) 

74.08 
(64.35)  

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020 
a. Profit/(Loss) after tax excluding exceptional items (171.48) (648.23) 
b. Less : Exceptional items -- -- 
c. Profit/(Loss) after tax including exceptional items (171.48) (648.23) 
d. Number of Equity shares outstanding  266,43,600 266,43,600 
e. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) :   
 - EPS excluding exceptional items (a/d) (0.64) (2.43) 
 - EPS including exceptional items  (c/d) (0.64) (2.43) 
f. Face value per share – in Rs. 2 per share 2 per share 

     Deferred Tax Asset  31.03.2021  31.03.2020 
1. Expenses covered by 43B -- -- 
2-. Carry forward Unabsorbed Depreciation/Business Loss  845.21 948.85 

Total 845.21 948.85 
Deferred Tax Liability   
1. Depreciation 0.28 0.31 
             Total 0.28 0.31 
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 844.93 948.54 

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 
Opening Balance 17.00 15.84 14.51 
Recognized in Profit and Loss    
MAT Credit entitlement (0.04) 1.16 1.33 
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 16.96 17.00 15.84 
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 The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintain a stable capital structure with the focus 
on total equity to uphold investor, creditor and customer confidence and to ensure future developments of the business. 
The company is focused on maintaining a strong equity base to ensure independence, security as well as finance flexibility 
for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company.

 
 The capital structure as at balance sheet date was as follows :

21.15: Disclosure with regard to liquidity risk showing details of contractual cash outflow, Interest rate sensitivity, fair 
value matrix as per Ind AS

 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, 
trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

 The Company is hardly much exposed to market risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk 
management is carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors under the 
broad parameters;

 i) Market Risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may   fluctuate due to change in market 

price. The value of financial instruments may change as result of change in interest rates and other market changes that 
affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including 
payable, deposits, loans & borrowings. The Company management evaluates and exercise control over process of market 
risk management. The Board recommends risk management objective and policies which includes management of cash 
resources, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies The Company assumes that 
the sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is 
based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

 ii) Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s long-term debt obligations with interest rates.  

 The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of loans and borrowings. In order to optimize the 
Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense, the Company performs a comprehensive 
corporate interest rate risk by using different type of economic product of floating rate of borrowings in its total portfolio.

 Interest rate sensitivity 
 In view of any inadequate expose to disruptive borrowings, there is hardly any  possible change in interest rates on that 

portion of borrowings . With all other variables held constant, the companies profit before tax is hardly affected through the 
impact on interest rate borrowings:

 iii) Credit Risk
 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Trade receivables are 

typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been 
managed by the company through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants 
credit terms in the normal course of business. Accordingly in terms of Ind AS 109, the company does not foresee any 
expected credit loss.

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company   126.96 303.38 
As a percentage of total capital 100% 100% 
Long-term borrowings  58.07 33.11 
Total borrowings 58.07 33.11 
As a percentage of total capital  45.74% 10.92% 
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 185.03 336.49 

< in Lacs
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 Credit Risk Management :
 Financial instruments and cash deposits
 The amortized cost and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at balance sheet date is as follows:

 The company has not disclosed the fair value of inventories, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade 
payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

 
 Credit Risk Management:
 Financial instruments and cash deposits
 The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks. The Company has 

investment with a Mutual Fund which has a good track record and reputation and hence there is hardly any risk to be 
reported. The Company assumes that the sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes 
in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 
2020.

 Trade receivables and other financial assets
 Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Other financial assets are 

security deposits. Credit risk has been managed by the Company through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of 
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 
109, the Company does not foresee any expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The company 
uses a provision matrix and forward looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the 
financial asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. There are no significant credit risks 
pertaining to financial assets.

 iv) Liquidity risk

 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate 
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, 
company’s finance team maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Particulars 
  

Note As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Amortized 

cost 
FVTOCI FVTPL Amortized 

cost 
FVTOCI FVTPL 

Financial assets        
Other Investments 4(a) 5.00 -- -- 5.00 -- -- 
Investments 4(d) 83.33 -- -- -- -- -- 
Inventories 5 1,408.60 -- -- 2,351.34 -- -- 
Trade receivables 4(e) 317.93 -- -- 58.47 -- -- 
Cash and cash equivalents 4(f,g) 108.56 -- -- 77.99 -- -- 
Loans to Corporates 4(h) -- -- -- 150.00 -- -- 
Loans to others 4(i) 275.90 -- -- 231.62 -- -- 
Total  2,199.32 -- -- 2,874.42 -- -- 
Financial liabilities        
Borrowings 10(a) 1,206.21 -- -- 2,211.03 -- -- 
Trade payables 10(b) 394.42 -- -- 78.86 -- -- 
Other Financial Liabilities 9(b) 1,452.94 -- -- 1,454.34   
Total  3,053.57 -- -- 3,744.23 -- -- 

< in Lacs
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